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Insurance premium revenue
Outwards reinsurance premium expense
Net insurance premium revenue

Claims expenses
Net claims incurred

Acquisition costs
Administration expenses
Underwriting expenses

Underwriting result

Investment income
investment expenses
Other income

Profit before income tax

Income tax expense
Profit for the year

Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd New Zealand Branch
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December 2014

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - -

Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit is attributable to:

Owners of Hallmark General Insurance Company Lid New Zealand

Branch

Total comprehensive income for the year is attributable to:
Owners of Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd New Zealand

Branch

2014 2013
Notes $'000 $'000

18,691 16,997
- {4)

1(a) 18,691 16,993

2,798 2,334

1(b) 2,798 2,334

4,103 3,897

5,865 4,380

9,968 8,277

5,925 5,382

1(c) 1,205 866
{16) (10)

551 115

7,665 7,353

1(d) 521 474

7,144 6,879

7,144 8,879

7,144 6,879

7,144 6,879

7,144 6,879

7,144 6,879

The above Statement of Profi or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the

accompanying notes.



Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd New Zealand Branch
Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2014

2014 2013

Notes $'000 $'000
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(a) 40,002 42,125
Trade and other receivables 2(b} 291 1,274
Deferred acquisition costs 2(c) 3,127 3,948
Total current assets 43,420 47,347
Non-current assets
Deferred acquisition costs 2(c) 2,886 2,979
Total non-current assets 2,886 2,979
Total assets 46,306 50,326
LIABILITIES
Current liabiiities
Trade and other payables 2(d) 443 7,074
Current tax liabilities 676 758
Quistanding claims liability 2(e) 2,341 2,205
Unearned premium liability 2(H) 13,772 17.718
Total current liabilities 17,232 27,755
Nen-current liabilities
Outstanding claims liability 2(e) 792 779
Unearned premium [iability 2(f) 12,713 13,367
Total non-current liabilities 13,505 14,146
Total liabilities 30,737 41,901
Net assets 15,569 8,425
EQUITY
Retained earnings 15,569 8,425
Total equity 15,569 8,425

The above Staternent of Financial Position should be read in conjuniction with the accompanying notes.
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Halimark General Insurance Company Ltd New Zealand Branch
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 December 2014

Aftributable to owners of Hallmark
General Insurance Company Ltd
New Zealand Branch

Retained Total
earnings equity
$000 $'000
Balance at 1 January 2013 1,548 1,546
Profit for the year 6,879 6,879
Total comprehensive income for the year 6,879 6,379
Balance at 31 December 2013 8,425 8,425
Balance at 1 January 2014 8,425 8,425
Profit for the year 7,144 7,44
Total comprehensive income for the vear 7,144 7,144
15,569 15,569

Balance at 31 December 2014

The above Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Hallmark General Insurance Gompany Ltd New Zealand Branch
Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2014

Cash flows from operating activities

Net premiums received

Claims paid

Paymenis to suppliers and employees
Interest received

Net cash inflow from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Payment to parent company

Advances from parent company

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from investing activities

Net cash inflow from financing activities

Net (decrease)lincrease in cash and cash eguivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

The above statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes

=)

2(a)

2014 2013
$'000 $'000

15,233 24,442
(2,649) (2,546)
(9,789) (12,980)
1,045 848
3,840 9,764
(5,963) -

- 5,963

(5,063) 5,063
(2,123) 15,727
42,125 26,398
40,002 42,125




Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd New Zealand Branch
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2014
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Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd New Zealand Branch
Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2014

(continued}

Financial performance

This section provides additional information about those individual line items in the financial statements relating to
financial peformance that management considers most relevant in the context of the operations of the entity.

1 Profit or loss information

(a) Netinsurance premium revenue

2014 2013
$'000 $'000
Gross written premium 14,091 22,038
Movement in unearned premiums 4,600 (5,041)
Qutwards reinsurance premium expense - (4)
Net premium revenue 18,691 16,993
{b} Net claims incurred
2014 2013
Current Year Prior Years Total Current Year Prior Years Total
$'000 $'000 %000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Gross claims incurred

and related expenses -

undiscounted 3,476 (668) 2,808 3,481 (1,137) 2,344
Discount and discount

movement - gross

claims incurred (53) 43 (10} (45) 35 (10}
3,423 (625) 2,798 3,436 (1,102) 2,334
Net claims incurred 3,423 {625) 2,798 3,436 {1,102) 2,334

Current period claims relate to risk borne in the current financial year. Prior perod claims relate to a
reassessment of the risks borne in all previous financial years.

Prior year release of $625,000 was due to better than expected claims experience across both the loans and
credit card products.

{c} Investment income

2014 2013

$'000 $'000
Interest income 1,205 866
Total investment income 1,205 866




Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd New Zealand Branch
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2014

1 Profit or loss information {continued)

{d) Income tax expense

(it Income tax expense

(continued)

2014 2013
$'000 $'000
Current tax expense 524 476
(Over) provided in prior years (3) {2)
Income tax expense 521 474
(i) Numerical reconciliation of income tax expense to prima facle tax payahle
2014 2013
$'000 $'000
Profit from continuing operations before income tax expense 7,665 7,353
Tax at the New Zealand tax rate of 28% (2013 - 28%) 2,146 2,059
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible {taxable} i i
in calculating taxable income:
Tax effect of non-assessable income (1,622) (1,583}
524 476
Adjustments for current tax of prior periods (3) {2)
Income tax expense 521 474

Balance sheet management

This section provides additional information about those individual line items in the statement of financial position

that management considers most relevant in the context of the operations of the entity.

2 Financial assets and financial liabilities

(a} Cash and cash equivalents

2014 2013
'000 ‘000
Current assets $ $
Cash at bank 1,918 7,043
Short term deposits 38,084 35,082
Total cash and eash equivalents 40,002 42 125




Hallmark General insurance Company Ltd New Zealand Branch
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2014

2 Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

(b} Trade and other receivables

{continued)

2014 2013

$'000 $'000
Current assets
Trade receivables - 1,143
Other receivables 291 131
Total trade and other receivables 291 1,274
These balances include amounts receivable from related parties (note 12).
The carrying value disclosed above approximates fair value at end of the reporting period.
{c) Deferred acquisition costs

2014 2013
$'000 §000

Current assets
Deferred acquisition costs 3,127 3,948
Non-current assets
Deferred acquisition costs 2,886 2,979
Total deferred acquisition costs 6,013 6,927
(i} Movements in deferred acquisition costs
Movements in deferred acquisition costs were as follows:

2014 2013
Deferred acquisition costs $'000 $'000
Opening balance at 1 January 6,927 5,551
Acquisition costs incurred during the year 3,189 5,273
Amortisation charged to profit or foss (4,103) (3,897)
Closing balance at 31 December 6,013 6,927
(d} Trade and other payables

2014 2013

$000 $'000
Cther payables 443 7,074

The carrying value disclosed above approximates fair value at end of the reporting period.
These balances include amounts payable to related parties {note 12).




Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd New Zealand Branch
Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 20114

{continued)

2 Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

(e} Outstanding claims liability

2014 2013

$'000 $'000
Central estimate 2,273 2,135
Risk margin 573 532
Claims handling expense 357 377
3,203 3,044
Discount to present value (70} (60)
Gross outstanding claims liability 3,133 2,984
Current 2,341 2,205
Non-current 792 779
Total outstanding claims liability 3,133 2,984

() The following ranges of discount rates were used in the measurement of outstanding claims and reinsurance
recoveries,

The current year discount rate is 3.54%
The subsequent years discount rate is 3.54%.

The weighted average expected term to settlement of the outstanding claims from the end of the reporting period
is estimated to be 0.73 years (2013: 0.63 years).

(if) Risk margin

Pracess for defermining risk margin

The risk margin is an additional allowance for uncertainty in the ultimate cost of claims. The overall margin
adopted is determined by the board after considering the uncertainty in the portfolio, industry trends and the
branch’s risk appetite.

To determine the margin adopted, the appointed aciuary has reviewed the factors impacting the portfolio to
establish a recommended margin at the level required by the board. Factors considered include:

- variability of claims experience of the portfolio;
+ quality of historical data;

+ diversification between different classes within the portfolio; and

*+ increase in uncertainty due to future economic environment and legisfative changes.

The level of uncertainty varies between classes of business, as such the adopted risk margin varies befween
business classes. The risk margin is applied to the gross central estimate.

The aggregate risk margin, after diversification aflowance, is intended to achieve a 90% (2013: 90%) probability
of sufficiency.

The risk margins applied to the major segments of the portfolio for 90% (2013 90%) level of adequacy are:

2014 2013

$000 3000
Consumer credit insurance - disability 19.7% 19.7%
Consumer credit insurance - unemployment 45.9% 45.9%
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Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd New Zealand Branch
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2014

2 Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

{e) Outstanding ciaims liability {continued)

(i} Reconciliation of movement in discounted outstanding claims liability

Accident Year Ending 31 December

(continued)

2014 2013

Gross Reinsurance  Net Gross  Reinsurance Net

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000
Opening balance at 1 January 2,984 - 2,984 3,196 - 3,196
Current year claims incurred 3,423 - 3,423 3,430 - 3,430
Change in previous years claims (625) - {625) (1,102} - (1,102)
Current year claims paid /
reinsurance recovered {957) - (957) (1,107) - (1.107)
Previous year claims paid /
reinsurance recovered {1,692} - {1,692} (1,433) - (1,433)
Closing balance at 31 December 3,133 - 3,133 2,984 - 2,984

(v} Claims development tables

Claims development tables are disclosed in order to put the claims estimate included in the financial statements
into context, allowing comparison of those claim estimates with the results seen in previous years. In effect, the
table highlights the branch's ability to provide a relfable estimate of the total value of ¢laims. The top part of the
table provides a review of current estimates of cumulative claims and demonstrates how the estimated claims
have changed at subseguent reporting or accident year-ends. The lower part of the table provides a reconciliation
of the fotal reserve included in the Statement of Financial Position and the estimates of cumulative claims.

Gross Ultimate Claims Cost

Reporting Year

Estimate of gross ultimate claims cost
At end of accident year

One year later

Two years later

Three years later

Four years later

Five years later

Six years later

Current estimate of cumulative claims
Cumulative payments to date
Undiscounted claims handling expenses
Gross outstanding claims - undiscounted
Discount impact

Gross outstanding claims - discounted
Net ultimate claims cost

2010 and
prior 2011 2012 2013 2014 Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
3,050 3,184 3,328
1,089 2,217 2,218 -
250 1,129 2,140 - -
303 1,093 - - -
403 - - - -
196
a7
441 1,093 2,140 2,218 3,328 9,220
(438) (1,074) (2,002) (1,773) (1,087) (6,374)
- 3 18 57 278 356
3 22 1586 502 2,519 3,202
- - {3) (13) (53) (69)
3 22 153 489 2,466 3,133
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Hallmark General Insurance Company [.td New Zealand Branch
Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2014

(continued)

2 Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
{e} Outstanding claims liability {continued)

(iv) Claims development tables (continued)

2010 and
Reporting Year prior 2011 2012 2013 2014 Total
$'000 $000 $000 $'000 $'coo $'000

Estimate of net ultimate claims cost

At end of accident year 3,050 3,184 3,328
One year later 1,089 2,217 2,218 -
Two years later 250 1,129 2,140 - -
Three years later 303 1,093 - - -
Four years later 403 - - - -
Current estimate of cumulative claims 441 1,093 2,140 2,218 3,328 9,220
Cumulative payments to date (438) (1,074) (2.002) ({1,773) (,087) (6,374)
Undiscounted claims handling expenses 3 18 57 278 356

Net outstanding claims - undiscounted 3 22 156 502 2,519 3,202
Discount impact - - (3) (13) (53) {69)
Net outstanding claims - discounted 3 22 153 489 2,466 3,133

(v) Liability adeguacy test

The liability adequacy test (LAT) is an assessment of the carrying amount of uneamed premium labilities and is
conducted at the end of each reporting period. The test is calculated separately for each portfolio of contracts that
are subject to broadly similar risks and are managed together as a single portfolio.

For the purposes of the liability adequacy test, the net premium liabifities at a 75% probability of sufficiency as at
31 December 2014 is $17,194,018 (31 December 2013: §22,143,942), therefore the liability adequacy test at
reporting date resulted in a surplus for the branch.

All actuarial data refating to the New Zealand Branch of the Company, prior to the 5th of March 2012, relates to

the insurance portfolio of Simply Insurance New Zealand Limited, and is disclosed to reflect the historical
actuarial profile of the insurance portfolio, which was transferred 1o the Branch on the 5th of March 2012,

{f} Unearned premium liability

2014 2013

$'coe $'000
Opening balance as at 1 January 31,085 27,754
Premiums written during the year 14,091 22,033
Premiums earned during the year (18,691) (18,702}
Closing balance as at 31 December 26,485 31,085
Current 13,772 17,718
Non-current 12,713 13,367
Total unearned premium liability 26,485 31,085

(g) Fair value measurement

There are no financial assets measured at fair value as at 31 December 2014. (2013: nil)

12




Halimark General Insurance Company Ltd New Zealand Branch
Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2014

{continued)

3 Cash flow information

(a) Reconciliation of profit after income tax to net cash flows from operating activities

2014 2013
$'000 $'000
Profit for the year 7,144 6,879
Adjustments
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
{Increase)/decrease in trade debtors 1,143 930
{Decrease)fincrease in trade and other payables {6,631) 2,490
(Increase) decrease In other receivables (160) 3,170
Decreasel(increase) in deferred acquisition costs 914 (1,376)
increase/ (decrease) in outstanding claim liability 149 (212)
(Decrease)fincrease in unearned premium liability (4,600) 3,331
{Decrease)fincrease in current tax liability (82} 515
Payments to/ (advances from) parent company 5,963 {5,963)
Net cash {outflow} inflow from operating activities 3,840 9,764
Risk

This section of the notes discusses the branch's exposure to various risks and shows how these could affect the
branch’s financial position and perfermance.

4 Critical estimates, judgements and errors

The branch makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at year
end. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The
areas in which accounting estimates are applied are described below.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key area of estimation uncertainty for the branch is in its estimation of outstanding claims and reinsurance
recoveries. These are discussed in detail in note 6.

The ullimate liability arising from claims made under insurance contracts

Provision is made at the year-end for the estimated cost of claims incurred but not setiled at the end of the
reporting period, including the cost of IBNR's to the branch.

The branch takes all reasonable steps to ensure that it has appropriate information regarding its claims exposure.
However, given the uncertainly in establishing claims provisions, it is likely that the final outcome will prove to be
different from the original lability established.

The estimation of IBNR is generally subject to a greater degree of uncertainty than the estimation of the cost of
settling claims already notified {o 1he branch, where more infarmation about the claim event is generally avaitable.
In calculating the estimated cost of unpaid claims the branch uses a variety of estimation techniques, generally
based upon statistical analyses of historical experience, which assumes that the development pattern of the
current claims will be consistent with past experience. Allowance is made, howevar, for changes or uncertainties
which may create distortions in the underlying statistics or which might cause the cost of unsettled claims to
increase or reduce when compared with the cost of previously settled claims including:

+ changes in the economic environment
» changes in the mix of business
* medical and technological developments

13
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(ii)

Hailmark General Insurance Company Ltd New Zealand Branch
Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2014

{continued)

4 Critical estimates, judgements and errors (continued)

The ultimate fiability arising from claims made under insurance corfracts (continued)

+ changes in benefit structures
* changes in claims management practice

Provisions are calculated gross of alf recoveries. A separate estimate is made of the amounts that will be
recoverable from decreasing adjustments and from reinsurers based upon the gross provisions. The decreasing
adjustments are estimated as 1/11th of gross outstanding claims liability.

The methods used to analyse past claims experience and to project future claims experience are largely
determined by the available data and the nature and maturity of the portfolic.

The determination of an appropriate outstanding claims liability and the specific assumptions used are detaited in
note 5.

5 Actuarial assumptions and methods

Impact of changes to valuation approach and key assumptions
The branch writes the following lines of business:

Consumer credit insurances

The risks covered in this group include:

* Involuntary unemployment
» Disability

+ Merchandise and price protection
+  Stolen card cover

During 2007, the Company ceased writing policies categorised as hire purchase insurance and personal loan
insurance ("old products™) and commenced wiiting a new consumer credit insurance product ("new products”,
from August 2007). As of 31 December 2014, no liability has been projected for "old products” with all policies
expired. Since May 2011, the Company has offered several credit card balance protection products which
provide cover for disabilily, unemployment and merchandise protection, price protection and stolen cards cover.

Effective 5 March 2012, the insurance business of Simply Insurance New Zealand (SINZ), a partner company
within the GE Capital Group, was transferred Into Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd. This business now
operates as a branch in New Zealand.

Process used to determine outstanding claims liabilities (actuarial methods)

The general approach to actuarial estimation of insurance liabilifies is to analyse available past experience,
including numbers of reported and finalised claims, amount of claim payments, changes in case estimates and
incurred loss ratios. This analysis allows patterns to be identified in the past experience. Based on this,
development patterns associated with the run-off of outstanding claims and premium liabilities at the balance
date can be estimated.

The determination of outstanding claims liabilities invelves two steps:

The determination of the central estimate of outstanding claims at the balance date. The ceniral estimate of
outstanding claims includes an allowance for IBNR claims and the further development of IBNER's.

The central estimate has no deliberate bias towards either over or under estimation. Generally speaking, this
means that the central estimate is assessed to have a 50% chance of adeguacy.

The determination of a risk margin and claims handling expense provision to be added to the central estimates of
outstanding claims.

14



Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd New Zealand Branch
Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2014

(continued)

5 Actuarial assumptions and methods (continued)

The estimation of outstanding claims liabilities has been performed separately for each of the claim types arising
under the different policies, namely: death, disability, material damage, unemployment and merchandise
mrotection, price protection and stolen cards.

Disability and unemployment {except credit cards)

fn determining the central estimate of the outstanding claims liabilities, separate analyses were performed on the
open (including pending) claims and IBNR ¢laims.

The individual claimant projection method was adopted for the open and pending claims. Claim payments have
been projected from the valuation date until the end of the policy term, taking into account the probability of
termination and limits to cfaim payments as stipulated in the policy. The claim payments are based on the
monthly loan instaiments for each individual claim. For pending claims, an acceptance rate assumption is also
applied in the valuation.

For IBNR claims, the central estimate of the outstanding claims liability was based on an estimated number of
IBNR claims and average claim sizes. The number of IBNR claims was based on analysis of claim numbers for
lines of business in runoff and analysis of claim frequency for line of business currently underwritten. The
average claim size is estimated from expected average total duration and average monthly benefits, with policy
design taken into account. For example, the consumer credit Insurance has a maximum unemployment payment
period of three months, which was reflected in the analysis.

Disability, unemployment and merchandise protection, price protection and stolen cards (credit cards
only)

The standard actuarial projection technique of payment per claim finafised {PPCF) was adopted in the
determination of the central estimate of the ouistanding claims liability for this risk, where claims are generally
finalised with the payment of a single lump sum amount. This involves estimating the number of future claim
finalisations and average claim sizes. The number of future finalisations was based on analysis of claim reports,
finalisations. The average claim size was based on the payments made on claims finalised.

Actuarial assumptions
The key actuarial assumptions for the determination of the outstanding claims are as follows:

2014 2014 2013 2013
Unemployment
Disability {excl {excl credit Disability {exc]  Unemployment

credit cards) cards) credit cards)  (exct credit cards)
Termination rates 4.5 - 14.5%* 10.0 - 15.0%* 4.5-14.5%" 10.0-32.0%*
Average weighted term to settlement (manths} 10,9 2.5-3.87 9.6 2.5-3.7*
Number of IBNR claims accepled (total) 77 62 88 90
Average Claim Size for IBNR claims $5,300 $1,200 - $1,800 54,900 $1,250-51,850
Discount rate 3.54%pa 3.20%pa

* Assumption varies according to the future claim duration

** Varies depending on underwriting period,
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Haltmark General insurance Company Ltd New Zealand Branch
Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2014

(continued)

5 Actuarial assumptions and methods (continued)

Actuarial assumptions {continued)

2014 2014 20114 2013 2013 203
Merchandise Merchandise
protection, protection,
price protection Price
and stolen protection and
Disability (credit Unemployment cards (credit Disability {(credit Unemptoyment stolen cards
cards) (credit cards) cards) cards) (credit cards) (credit cards)
Average settlement size  $2,500 - $2,800 $1,700 - $2,500 $300 $2,500-$2,800 $1,700-$2,500 $350
Number of future
finalisations 61 115 31 45 82 57

Other assumptions

The outstanding claims provision includes a claim handling expense of 15% and an additional 1% for medical
expenses, with a prudential margin calculated at a 90% probability of adequacy.

Process used to determine actuarial assumptions

A description of the processes used to determine the above key actuarial assumptions is provided below:

+  Termination rates
Termination rates by claim duration from the date of incident are adopted and these are used to derive the
probability of payment on each claim for each month into the future. The projection produces the average
weighted term of settlement.

*  Average weighted term to settlement from the end of the reporting period
The average term to settlement from reporting date is based on claim termination analysis performed on the
historical claims experiences. The claim termination analysis is performed separately for unemployment and
disabifity.

Termination rate by duration from the date of incident are adopted and these are used to derive the
probability of payment on each claim for each month into the future. The projection produces the average
weighted term of settlement.

* Average claim size for IBNR claims (new products only}
For disability and unemployment, the adopted average claim size was based on two types of analysis: the
expected average total duration for each claim type and benefit duration (only for unemployment) multiplied
by the average monthly payment amount for each claim type, and the historical average claim size. The
average duration was based on the assumed termination rates.

For death and material damage, the average claim size was based on the lump sum payments made on
finalised claims.

*  Number of IBNR claims (new products only)
The number of IBNR claims was based on an analysis of historical claim numbers for policies in runoff and
an analysis of claim frequency for lines of business currently underwritten,

*  Average claim size for settlements (credit cards only)
For credit cards policies, the adopted average claim size was based on historic ratios of claim payments to
numbers of claims finalised.
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Halimark General Insurance Company Ltd New Zealand Branch
Notes to the financiai statements

For the year ended 31 December 2014

(continued)

5 Actuarial assumptions and methods (continued)

Process used to determine actuarial assumptions (continued)

+  Number of future finalisations (credit cards only}
For credit cards policies, the number of future finalisations is based on an analysis of historical claim reports
and finalisation rates. This then enables the future numbers of reports, handled claims and finalisations to be

projected.

«  Expense rate
The adopted claims handling expense rate of 15% (2013: 17%) of the projected gross claim payments, was
determined based on the results of an expense investigation carried out in 2014. An additional 1% {2013:

1%) for medical expenses Is applied to Disability claims.

«  Discount rate
The central estimates of the outstanding claims liabilities for the periodic benefits were discounted te allow for
future investment income attributable to the liabilities during the run off period. The discount factor was based
on the annual risk free rates of return from the yield curve on New Zealand government bonds.

Sensitivity analysis

The outstanding claims liabilities included in the reported results are calculated based on the key actuarial
assumptions as disclosed above. The movement in any of the above key actuarial assumptions will impact the
performance and equity of the branch. The table below describes how a change in each of the assumptions will
affect the outstanding claims liabilities. The outstanding claims fiabilities are on a discounted basis and include
claim handling expenses and a risk margin at the 90% probability of adequacy.

Impact of changes in assumptions for old and new products on total outstanding claims liability:

Impacton net  Impact on total

outstanding outstanding
claims liabilities claims liabilities
Key actuarial assumptions Changes (3000"s) (%)
Claim termination rate* Reduce all termination rates by 10% +138 4.4%
IBNR Increase IBNR ACS by 10% / increase +126 4.0%
number of IBNR claim by 10%
Claims handling expense rate  Increase the claims handling expense +68 2.2%

rate from 15% to 19%

Impact of changes in assumptions for Credit Cards on total outstanding claims liability:

Impact on Impact on total
outstanding outstanding
claims liabilities claims liabilities
Key actuarial assumptions Changes ($000’s) (%)
Claim development Increase chain ladder factors by 10% +38 +1.2%
Average settlement size Increase average settlement size by +37 +1.2%
10%
Claims handling expense rate  Increase the claims handling expense +29 +0.9%

rate from 15% to 19%
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Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd New Zealand Branch
Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2014

{continued)

5 Actuarial assumptions and methods (continued)

Changes to key assumptions

There are no major changes during the year.

6 Financial risk management

This note explains the branch's exposure to financial risks and how these risks could affect the branch’s future
financial performance. Current year profit or loss information has been included where relevant to add further

context.
{a) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss due to a counterpariy failing to perform their contractual obligations and
principally arises through the branch's investment in financial instrurents, receivables from related or other
parties, and claims on reinsurance contracts.

The following policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the branch's exposure o credit risk:

(i} Financial assets

The branch's investment mandate sets out the investment management guidelines approved by the board. The
guidelines establish credit approval authorities, concentration limits, and approved investment portfolio
parameters. These guidelines comply with the GE Capital Corporation Financial Institutions Credit Standards
{GECC FICS) policy which sets out concentration limits and additional portfolio parameters. Management
conducis a regular review of the investment holdings, compliance is monitored and exposures or breaches are
reported o the board. The mandate is reviewed regularly for pertinence and for changes in the risk environment.

The branch only invests with counterparties that have a credit rating of at least A1/A from Standard & Poor's
(S&P). Where a counterparty changes rating to below A1/A after acquisition, management will continue to review
its holding in those counterparties and divest as deemed appropriate. The branch further limits its exposure to
credit risk by sefting individual exposure limits. There is no significant concentration of credit risk and
management does not expect any counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

{ii} Reinsurance assels

Reinsurance is placed with counterparties within the guidelines of the reinsurance management strategy (ReMS).
Counterparties must have an S&P credit rating of at least A. The branch further sefs its exposure to credit risk by
setting individual exposure limits. At the end of each reporting period, management performs an assessment of
creditworthiness of reinsurers and updates the ReMS,

(i} Trade and other receivables

The branch's maximum credit risk exposure at balance date is limited to the carrying amount of the financial
assets as stated in the statement of financial position. The branch does not have a significant concentration of
credit risk with any counterparty, other than related parties (see note 12).

The table below shows the branch's maximum exposure to credit risk at balance date.
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(continued)
6 Financial risk management (continued)
(a) Credit risk {continued)
Non- Non-
investment investment Total neither
investment grade grade past due nor Pastdue or
grade satisfactory unsatisfactory impaired impaired Total
2014 $'000 $'000 $'c00 $'000 $'000 $'000
Financial assets
Cash and cash
equivalents 40,002 - - 40,002 - 40,002
Trade and other
receivables - 291 - 291 - 281
Total credit risk
exposure 40,002 291 - 40,293 - 40,293
Non- Norn-
investment  investment Total neither
Investment grade grade past due nor Past due or
grade satisfactory unsatisfactory impaired impaired Total
2013 $'000 $'000 5'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 42 125 - - 42,125 - 42,125
Trade and other
receivables - 1,274 - 1,274 - 1,274
Total credit risk exposure 42,125 1,274 - 43,399 - 43,399

* A receivable is deemed satisfactory when management is satisfied the obligor has the capacity to meet its
financial obligations.

The table below classifies the financial assets of the branch by counterparty credit rating.

AAA AA A BBB Not rated Total
2014 $'000 5000 $'oco $'000 $'000 $'000
Financial Assets
Cash - - 40,002 - - 40,002
Trade and other recejvables® - - - - 291 291
Total credit risk exposure - - 40,002 - 291 40,293
AAA AA A BBEB Nof rated Total
2013 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'0e0
Financial Assets
Cash - - 42,125 - - 42,125
Trade and other receivables* - - - - 1,274 1,274
Total credit risk exposura - - 42,125 - 1,274 43,399

* No receivables are past due or impaired at balance date (2013 Nil}.
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(continued)

6 Financial risk management (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk
Liguidity risk is the risk that the branch will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The

branch's objective and funding strategy seeks to ensure liquidity and diversity of funding sources to meet actual
and contingent fiabilities in both stable and adverse market conditions.

The branch's liquidity is primarily monitored through the production of the statement of cash flows for board
review, Periodic review of the maturity profile of the branch's financial assets and liabilities is performed {o ensure
sufficient liquidity is maintained.

The following is an analysis of the maturity profile of undiscounted contractual cash flows associated with the
branch's financial liabiliies at balance date, excluding insurance liabilities.

Uptoa Over 5

year 1-2 years 2-5 years years No term Total
2014 $'600 $'000 5000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Trade and cther payables 443 - - - - 443
Qutstanding claims liabilities 2,341 581 211 - - 3,133
Net principal liabilities 2,784 581 211 - - 3,576
2013
Trade and other payables 7.074 - - - - 7,074
Outstanding claims liabilities 2,205 581 198 - - 2,984
Net principal liabilities 9,279 581 198 - - 10,058

The branch’s financial assets and liabilities are carried in the statement of financial position at amounts that
approximate fair value,

(c) Marketrisk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of its financial instruments or future cash flows will decrease due to
changes in external economic variables such as interest rates, currency rates and equity prices.

The board is responsibie for developing and monitoring the risk management policies of the branch in refation to
market risk. The branch's investment activities follow the GECC FICS policy. The GECC FICS policy document
outlines the level of acceptable market risk, including counterparty ratings and exposure levels that apply to the
investment activities of branch's within the GECC Group.

() Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of recognised assets and fiabilities or the cash flows from possible future
transactions, that are denominated in a currency, other than that of the functional currency, will decrease due to
changes in market exchange rates.

The branch has no foreign currency exposure at balance date that is considered material,

(i) Interest rate risk
interest rate risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate as a resuit of changes in market
interest rates.
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6 Financial risk management {continued)

(c) Market risk (continued)

(i) Interest rate risk (continued)

(continued)

The following table analyses the impact of a reasonable possible movement in market interest rates on the
branch's operating results.

2014

Financial
assets
Short term
deposits

2013

Financial
assets
Short term
deposits

Change
Carrying in
amount variables
3000 %
38,084 (1)%
38,084
Change
Carrying in
amount variables
$'000 %
35,082 (1Y%
35,082

Impact on
profit or
loss Impact on equity Total
Uptoa Over 5
year 1-2 years 2.5 years years
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'060 $'000
(381) (274) - - - (274)
(381) (274) - - T T (@ra)
Impact on
profit or
loss Impact on equity Total
Uptoa Over 5
year 1-2 years  2-5 years years
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'060 $'000
(351) {253} - - - {253)
{351) {253) - - - {253)

This analysis is performed on the same basis for 2013 and assumes that all other variables remain the same.
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(continued)

7 Capital management

Capital consists of retained earnings.

The branch's capital management strategy plays a central role in managing capital risk arising from the business
activities of the branch, providing an appropriate level of capital to protect policyholders' interests and satisfy
regulators. The strategy seeks to ensure sufficient capital levels are maintained in both stable and adverse

market conditions.

The branch has adopted a target surplus policy to assist the board and management to manage its capital
position. The target surplus level has been set with reference to a range of risks and possible adverse seenarios
faced by the branch.

The branch has net assets well in excess of the adopted target surplus requirement, reflecting its current strong
capital position.

In addition to the branch's target surplus policy, external capital requirements are set and regulated by the
Australian Prudential Regulation Authority (APRA). The branch calculates its capital position according to the
relevant Prudential Standards which ensures sufficient capital is maintained to meet policyholder obligations. An
insurer's capital base is expected to be adequate for the size, business mix, complexity and risk profile of its

husiness.

It is the branch's policy to hold capital levels in excess of those required by APRA according {o its target surplus
policy, the capital level is regularly monitored to minimise the risk of a regulatory breach.

For detailed information on the branch's capital position and the capital requirements of APRA, refer note 7(b).
(a) Risk management

Insurance contracts

An insurance contract is a confract under which {he insurer accepls significant insurance risk from the
policyholder by agreeing to compensate the policy holder for a specified uncertain future event non-specific o the
policy holder that will adversely affect them. Insurance risk is other than financial risk.

The significance of insurance risk under any one contract is determined by the uncertainty surrounding the
probability and timing of the insured event occurring, and the magnitude of its effect. Insurance risk is assessed
by the branch at a contract level on its inception and is periodically reassessad as the risk may vary during the
period of insurance cover.

The majority of direct insurance contracts written are entered into on a standard form basis. There are no special
terms and conditions in any non-standard contracts that have a material impact on the financial statements.

The policies written consists mainly of consumer credit insurance.
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(continued)

7 Capital management (continued)

insurance risk management

Insurance risk management is the assessment and quantification of the likelihood and financial impact of events
that may require seftlement by the insurer; and the ability of the branch to mitigate the financial impact of these
events on its operating results.

In accordance with Prudential Standards GPS 220 Risk Management for General Insurers and GPS 230
Reinsurance Management for General Insurers issued by APRA, the board and senior management of the
branch have developed, implemented and maintained a sound and prudent risk management strategy (RMS) and
a reinsurance management strategy (ReMS).

The RMS and ReMS identify the branch's policies, procedures, processes and controls that address all known
material risks, financial and non-financial, arising from the business. Annually, the board certifies to APRA that
adequate sfrategies have been put in place to monitor those risks, that the branch has systems in place to ensure
compliance with legislative and prudential requirements, and that the board has satisfied itself as 1o the
compliance with the RMS and ReMS.

Specific key components of the RMS and ReMS are detziled further below.

(i Underwriting strategy

The board has developed an underwriting strategy to ensure that the branch has the ability to meet the insurance
needs of the policy holders and to ensure the ability to pay benefits and claims when due. The strategy involves
the identification of risks by type, impact and likelihood and involves the application of mathematical modelling to
determine that products are appropriately priced.

(i) Reinsurance strategy

A conservalive approach is taken in determining the leve! of risk appetite appropriate for the branch and where
deemed appropriate will spread the risk associated with the insured events according to its ReMS. All
reinsurance treaties are subject to analyfical and statistical modelling to ensure that they offer a sufficient level of
cover for the identified exposures whilst in alignment with the ReMS of the branch.

(ii) Claims management

Strict claims management procedures ensure the timely and accurate payment of claims in accordance with
policy conditions. Claim outcomes are monifored to track the actual versus expected experience of the portfolio,
with feedback delivered to underwriting and product development.

{(iv) Concenfration of insurance risk
The branch's portfolio of products and policy holders is sufficiently diversified such that there is no material
concentration of insurance risk.

(b} Capital adequacy

The branch is required to hold prudential reserves, over and above the general insurance contract liabilities, as a
buffer against adverse future experience and poor investment returns. New risk-based prudential capital
standards for Australian life and general insurance companies (LAGIC) were introduced effective 1 January
2013. The required level of capital for regulatory purposes (the prudential capital amount, or PCA)} is intended to
take account of the full range of risks to which a general insurer is exposed and a general company must ensure
that the general company has, at all times, a capital base in excess of its PCA (plus any additional amount as
required by APRA).

The excess of the branch's capital base over the PCA as at 31 December 2014 was $63.7 million (2013:%151.1
million).
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7 Capital management (continued)

(b) Capitai adequacy (continued)

In addition to the regulatory capital requirements, the branch maintains a target surpius providing an additional
capital buffer against adverse events.

LAGIC disclosure
2014 2013
§'000 $'000
(a) Capital base 101,282 190,646
(b} Prescribed capital amount 37,603 39,567
Capital in excess of prescribed capital amount = (a) - (b) 63,679 151,079
Capital adequacy multiple = (a)/(b) 2.69 4.82
2014 2013
$000 $'000
Capital Base:
Net Assets 94,968 186,013
Regulatory adjusiment applied in the calculation of Tier 1 capital 6,314 4,632
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital 101,282 190,645
Prescribed capital amount:
Insurance Risk Charge 11,533 13,589
Insurance Concentration Risk Charge 21,944 23,113
Asset Risk Charge 4,340 3,036
Asset Concentration Risk Charge - -
Operational Risk Charge 2,996 2,139
Aggregation benefit {3,210} (2,310)
Prescribed capital amount 37,603 39,667

Excess technical provisions

The liability required by GPS 110 for prudential reporting purposes differs from accounting purposes. As
described in note 13(p) the branch applies risk margins to the ceniral estimate of net outstanding claims to
achieve a 80% confidence level. GPS 110 requires a prudential margin with a sufficiency of 75%.
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Unrecognised items

This section of the notes provides information about items that are not recognised in the financial statements as
they do not {yet) satisfy the recognition criteria.

8 Commitments and contingencies
As at 31 December 2014,the branch had no contingencies ( 2013: nil),

9 Matters subsequent to the end of the financial year

No matter or circumstance has arisen since 31 December 2014 that has significantly affected or may significantly
affect:

+ the branch's operations; or
= the results of those operations; or
= the branch's state of affairs.

Other information

This section of the notes includes other information that must be disclosed to comply with the accounting
standards and other pronouncements, but that is not immediately related to individual line items in the financial

statementis.

10 Remuneration of auditors
No remuneration to auditors has been recognised; this expense was incurred by the head office of the branch.

11 Key management personnel disclosures

Any remuneration received by directors was received in their capacity as directors of Hallmark General Insurance
Company Lid.

12 Related party fransactions

(a} Transactions with related parties

The following transactions occurred with related parties:

2014 2013
] $

Management faes pald tof{received from):

Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd 5,817,486 4,348,419
Advances from parent company

Halimark General insurance Company Lid - 5,963,500

Payments to Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd (5,963,500) -
Commission paid to:

GE Finance and Insurance NZ 3,189,973 5,273,187
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12 Reiated party transactions (continued)
{b) Outstanding balances with related parties
2014 2013
$ 5

Receivables/(payables)

Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd {842,0786) (7,018,115)

GE Finance and Insurance NZ 413,082 1,143,858

No provisions for doubtful debts have been raised in relation to any outstanding balances, and no expense has
been recognised in respect of bad or doubtful debts due from related parties.

13 Summary of significant accounting policies

General information

Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd New Zealand Branch (the branch) was registered in New Zealand on
the 5th April 2011, under the Companies Act 1993. These are the financial statements of the New Zealand
branch of Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd (the Company).

The parent entity of Hallmark General Insurance Company Lid is GE Capital Finance Australasia Pty Ltd. The
ultimate parent entity of Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd is General Electric Company.

The branch is a for-profit entity and is primarily involved in the underwriting of general insurance risks.

Effective 5th March 2012, the branch commenced insurance activities in New Zealand when the insurance
portfolio of Simply Insurance New Zealand Ltd was transferred to the branch on that date.

The financial staternents were authorised for issue by the directors on 27 February 2015.
(a) Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

This general purpose financial report covers the branch as a single entity and has been prepared in accordance
with New Zealand equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (NZ IFRS).

This financial report complies with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the
nternational Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and New Zealand equivalents to International Financial
Reporting Standards (NZ IFRS). The branch is a reporting entity for the purpose of the Financial Reporting Act
1993 and its financial statements comply with that Act.

Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on a fair value basis with certain exceptions as described in the
accounting policies below.

Comparative information
Certain comparative information in the financial statements have been reclassified to conform with the current
year's presentation.

Changes in accouniing policies and disclosures
There has been no change in accounting policies for the current financial year.
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13 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. The branch recognises
revenue from non-insurance activities when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the branch and
the revenue amount can be reliably measured. The branch bases ifs estimates on historical results, taking into
cansideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement. In addition, the
following specific recognition criteria apply to revenue streams:

(i} Premium revenue

Premium revenue comprises amounts charged to policyholders (direct premium) for insurance contracts,
excluding stamp duties and taxes collected on behalf of third parties.

Premium revenue is recognised in the profit or loss when it has been earned. It is recognised as earned from the
date of attachment of risk (generally the date a contract is agreed to but may be earlier if persuasive evidence of
an arrangement exists) over the period of the related insurance contracts in accordance with the pattern of the
incidence of risk expected under the contracts. The pattern of the risks underwritten is generally matched by the
passing of time but where time does not approximate the pattern of risk, previous claims experience is used to
derive the incidence of risk.

Premium for unclosed business (business written close to reporting date where attachment of risk is prior o
reporiing date and there is insufficient information to accurately identify the business) is brought to account based
on previous experience with due allowance for any changes in the pattern of new business and renewals.

The unearned portion of premium is recognised within unearned premium liabilities in the statement of financial
position.

(i} Investment income

All investment income is recognised as revenue on an accruals basis. Interest income is recognised on a time
proporiion basis using the simple interest method. Assets are designated at fair value through profit and loss and
the related net realised and unrealised gains and losses are included in the profit or loss as investment revenue.

{c} Claims expenses

The branch's claims liability is measured as the present value of expected future payments relating to claims
incurred at the reporting date. The expected future payments include those estimates in relation to claims
incurred but not enough reported (IBNER's) and claims incurred but not reportad (IBNR's) based on past
experience.

Claims incurred all relate to providing services, including the bearing of risk, and are accordingly treated as
expenses in the profit or [oss. Claims expenses represent total claim payments made during the year adjusted for
the movement in the outstanding claims liability.

The claims liability is measured based on the advice of valuations performed by the appointed actuary whose key
assumplions are outlined in note 5.

(d} Other expenses
Other expenses are recognised in the profit or loss on an accruals basis.
(e) Qutwards reinsurance premium

Premium ceded to reinsurers is recognised as an expense in accordance with the pattern of reinsurance service
received. Accordingly, a portion of outwards reinsurance premium is treated at the reporting date as deferred
reinsurance expense. Reinsurance recoveries on claims incurred are recognised as revenue,
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13 Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

(f) Deferred acquisifion costs

Costs, which vary with and are primarily related to the production of new business, have been deferred to the
extent that such costs are deemed recoverable from future profits. Such costs primarily include commissions.
These costs are amortised in proportion to premiums over the estimated lives of the policies. A write down to
recoverable amount Is recognised where the present value of expected future claims (including settlement costs)
in refation to business written to the end of the reporting period exceeds related unearned premiums less the
deferred acquisition costs,

(9) Income tax

The income tax expense for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income based on the
national income tax rate.

Taxation basis
The principal elements for the calculation of the taxable income for each class of business (for the different bases
for calculating tax) are as follows:

Gross premium income

As the branch is a non-resident, for tax purposes, general insurer in New Zealand it is taxed at 10% of its New
Zealand sourced gross premium income, Deductions for expenditure are not atlowed. A non-resident withholding
tax of 10% or approved issuer levy of 2% applies to any New Zealand sourced interest income on investrments.

(h) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held
at call with financial institutions and other short-term, highly fiquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash.

{i) Loans and other receivables

All premium and other receivables are recognised at the amounts receivable as these amounts are generally due
for seftlement within 30 days and less, where applicable, any provision for doubtful debts, Collectability of
premium and other receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts which are known to be uncollectible are
written off in the perlod in which they are identified.

{I) Reinsurance and other recoveries receivable

Reinsurance and other recoveries receivable on paid claims, reported claims not yet paid and IBNR's are
recognised as revenue. Recoveries receivable are assessed in a manner similar to the assessment of the liability
for outstanding claims and policy liabilities.

(k) Classification of insurance contracts

Contracts under which the branch accepts significant insurance risk from the policyholder or another party by
agreeing to compensate the policyholder or other beneficiary if a specified uncertain future event adversely
affects the policyholder or other beneficiary, are classified as insurance contracts. The risks associated with
Insurance contracts are detailed further in note 5.

() Assets backing general insurance liabilities

Halimark General Insurance Company Ltd has established a target capital surplus policy to ensure assets are
available to meet insurance liabilities.
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13 Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

(m} Financial assets

The branch has elected to designate all its financial assets backing insurance policies at fair value through profit
and loss consistent with the provisions of NZ IAS 39 Financial Instruments; Recognition and Measurement.

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss and are initially recognised at fair value, excluding
transaction costs, which are expensed in the profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Financial assets are
subsequently measured at fair value at each reporting date with realised and unrealised gains and losses arising
from changes in the fair value recognised in the profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Classification

(i} Short term deposits
Short term deposits are carried at the face value of the amounts deposited as their carrying amounts approximate
to their fair value.

(i} Unlisted fixed inferest securities

Unlisted fixed interest securities are recorded at amounts based on valuations using rates of interest equivalent
to the yields obtainable on comparable investments at the end of the reporting period.

All financial instruments are required to be further categorised under NZ IFRS 7 Financial Instruments;
Disclosures, according to the availability of observable market inputs used in the measurement of their fair
vatues, which is detailed further in note 2(qg).

(n) Impairment of assets

The carrying amount of the branch's assets which are in the scope of NZ IAS 36 Impairment of Assets are
assessed annually for indicators of impairment. if any such indicator exists, then the asset's recoverable amount

is estimated.

An impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal. Impairment losses are
recognised in the profit or loss, unless an asset has previously been re-valued, in which case the impairment loss
is recognised as a reversal to the extent of that previous revaluation with any excess recognised through the
profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount is increased 1o the revised estimate of its
recoverable amaunt, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment is recognised immediately in the profit or loss.

{o) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the branch prior to the end of
the financial year, which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 90 days of
recognition.
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13 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

{p} Outstanding claims liability

The liability for outstanding claims covers the expected future payments in relation to claims reported but not yet
paid, IBNR's, IBNER's and the anticipated direct and indirect costs of settling these claims.

The liability for outstanding claims is subject to yearly actuarial review. The general approach to the actuarial
estimation of outstanding claims is to analyse all available past experience. Based on this, the expected future
payments are determined and discounted to present value using a risk free rate.

The provision for the outstanding claims liability also contains a risk margin to reflect the inherent uncertainty in
the central estimate. The risk margin increases the probability that the net fiability is adeguately provided for to a
90% (2013: 90%) confidence level,

{q) Liability adequacy test

The adequacy of the insurance contract liabilities are evaluated each year. The insurance contract test considers
current estimates of all contractual and related cash flows. if it is determined using best estimate assumptions
that a shortfall exists, it is immediately recognised in the profit or loss, Refer to note 2(e)(v).

{r} Unexpired risk liability

Provision is made for unexpired risks arising from general insurance business where the expected value of
claims and expenses attributed to the unexpired periods of policies in force at the end of the reporting period
exceeds the unearned premiums provision in relation to such policies after the deduction of any deferred
acquisition costs. The provision for unexpired risk is calculated separately by reference to separate classes of
business, which are managed together, after taking into account the relevant investment return.

Unexpired risk liability, if any, remaining after writing off deferred acquisition costs is recognised immediately in
the profit or loss. Refer to note 2{e)(v).

{s} Foreign currency translation and functional currency

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of the branch are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the branch operates (the functional currency).

The financial statements are presented in New Zealand dollars, which is the functional and presentation currency
for the branch.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities derominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the date when the fair value was determined.

Translation differences on financial instruments carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or
loss.
(t) Goods and services tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and service tax {GST), except where
the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Inland Revenue Depariment (IRD). In these
circumstances the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense,
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13 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(t} Goods and services tax (GST) (continued)

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of GST. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to,
the [RD is included as a current asset or liability in the statement of financial position.

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or
financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to, the IRD, are classified as operating cash flows,

The GST rate in New Zealand is 15% (2013: 15%).

(u) New accounting standards and interpretations

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual periods
beginning after 1 January 2015, and have not been applied in preparing these financial statements. None of
these is expecied fo have a significant effect on the financial statements of the branch, except for NZ IFRS 9
Financial Instrurments, which becomes mandatory for the branch's 2018 financial statements and could change
the classification and measurement of financial assets. The branch does not plan to adopt this standard early and
the extent of the impact has not been determined.

(v) Rounding of amounts

Amounts in the financial statements have been rounded off to the nearast thousand dollars, or in certain cases,
the nearest dollar.
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Haflmark General Insurance Company Ltd New Zealand Branch
Directors’ declaration
31 December 2014

Directors’ Declaration
In the opinion of the directors of Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd New Zealand Branch ("the branch"):

(a)  the financial statements and notes set out on pages 2 to 31 are in accordance with the Financial
Reporting Act 1993, including:

() giving a true and fair view of the branch's financial position as at 31 December 2014 and of its
performance for the financial year ended on that date; and

(b}  the financial statements also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in note
13; and

{c}  there are reasonable grounds to believe that the branch will be able to pay its debts as and when they
become due and payable.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of directors:

o

JoAnne Maree Stephenson (Chairman)
Director

Sydney

27 February 2015

Anna Elizabeth Gladman (Managing Director)
Director

Sydney

27 February 2015
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Independent auditor’s report

To the Shareholders of Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd
New Zealand Branch

Report on the financial statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Hallmark General Insurance
Company New Zealand Branch (“the Branch™) on pages 2 to 31. The financial statements
comprise the statements of financial position as at 31 December 2014, the statements of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand and International Financial Reporting
Standards that give a true and fair view of the matters to which they relate, and for such
internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (New
Zealand). Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the Branch’s preparation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the matters to which they relate in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Branch's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates, as well as evaluating the presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Other than in our capacity as auditor we have no relationship with, or interests in, the Branch.

i3

KPMG, an Australian partnership and a member

firm of the KPMG netwaork of independent member

firms affiliated with KPMG International Cocperative  Liability limited by a scheme approved under
"KPMG International®), a Swiss antity. Professional Standards Legislation.
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Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements of Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd
New Zealand Branch on pages 2 to 31:

e comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand;
¢ comply with International Financial Reporting Standards;

e give atrue and fair view of the financial position of the Branch as at 31 December 2014
and of the financial performance and cash flows of the Branch for the year then ended.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

In accordance with the requirements of sections 16(1)(d) and 16(1)(e) of the Financial
Reporting Act 1993, we report that:

e we have obtained all the information and explanations that we have required; and
e in our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept by Hallmark General Insurance

Company Ltd New Zealand Branch as far as appears from our examination of those
records.

KivE, |
KPMG

Sydney

19" March 2015

34
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24 July 2015
The Board of Directors
Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd
Level 4, 99 Walker Street
North Sydney NSW 2060

Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd: Appointed Actuary signoff of
financial statements and financial condition as at 31 December 2014 for
New Zealand reporting purposes

Dear Directors,

Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd ("HGIC") is an Australian authorised insurer regulated by the
Australian Prudential Regulatory Authority ("APRA") and has a licence issued by the Reserve Bank New
Zealand ("RBNZ").

HGIC has appointed me, Richard Yee, Ernst & Young, to be HGIC's Appointed Actuary as described by the
Insurance Act 1973 and related Prudential Standards and Guidance Notes current at 31 December 2014
and by the New Zealand Insurance (Prudential Supervision) Act 2010 (the Act). | have no relationship
with HGIC other than being its Appointed Actuary.

The prime responsibility of the Appointed Actuary is to provide advice to the Board of a general insurer
on its financial condition and on the value of its insurance liabilities (this includes the preparation of the
actuarial information contained in its financial statements). The Appointed Actuary must provide written
advice to the Board of the insurer on the value of insurance liabilities in accordance with APRA's
Prudential Standard GPS320 Actuarial and Related Matters.

As part of my responsibilities | have produced reports on HGIC's insurance liabilities, the Insurance
Liability Valuation Report (ILVR), and financial condition, the Financial Condition Report (FCR), as at 31
December 2014. The work | have undertaken is described in Section 2 of my FCR and Section 2 of my
ILVR. The scope and limitations of my review are described in Sections 2, 14 and 15 of my FCR and
Sections 2 and 13 of my ILVR. | have reviewed all information necessary for me to complete my FCR and
ILVR.

The RBNZ has exempted HGIC from compliance with their Solvency Standard for Non-life Insurance
Business. This exemption has been granted subject to various conditions, including obligations of the
Appointed Actuary. These obligations are addressed below. Where relevant and appropriate | have
commented on total HGIC Company level results and also separately in relation to HGIC New Zealand
results.

Financial Statements - HGIC Company
Section 77 of the Act requires a review by the Appointed Actuary of the actuarial information in the
financial statements of the company and in particular:
The unearned premium liability and liability adequacy test
b. The Net Qutstanding Claims Liability
c. Thereinsurance and any other recovery assets
d. Any deferred acquisition cost or deferred fee revenue

e. Any other information deemed by the appointed actuary to warrant actuarial review for the
purpose of profit or solvency reporting.

Liability limited by a scheme approved
under Professional Standards Legislation
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| confirm that my FCR and my ILVR meet the requirements of Section 78 of The Act, and they contain my
advice regarding the net premium liabilities, liability adequacy test, net outstanding claims liabilities, the
reinsurance and any other recovery assets, and deferred acquisition costs (implicit in the unearned
premium).

I note that | have previously reviewed the earning patterns adopted by HGIC and consider them suitable.
For the current ILVR | have also checked the UEP calculation performed for certain product types and
believe the calculations are reasonable.

Based on the financial statements, the actuarial information provided has been appropriately included in
the preparation and completion of HGIC's 31 December 2014 year end financial statements.

Financial Statements - HGIC New Zealand Branch

Section 77 of the Act reguires a review by the Appointed Actuary of the actuarial information in the New
Zealand Branch financial statements and in particular;

a. The unearned premium liability and liability adequacy test
b. The Net Outstanding Claims Liability

c. Thereinsurance and any other recovery assets

d. Any deferred acquisition cost or deferred fee revenue

e. Any other information deemed by the appointed actuary to warrant actuarial review for the
purpose of profit or solvency reporting.

I confirm that my FCR and my ILVR meet the requirements of Section 78 of The Act, and they contain my
advice regarding the net premium liabilities, liability adequacy test, net outstanding claims liabilities, the
reinsurance and any other recovery assets, and deferred acquisition costs (implicit in the unearned
premium).

I note that | have previously reviewed the earning patterns adopted by HGIC and consider them suitable.
For the current ILVR | have also checked the UEP calculation performed for certain product types and
believe the calculations are reasonable.

Based on the financial statements, the actuarial information provided has been appropriately included in
the preparation and completion of HGIC New Zealand Branch's 31 December 2014 year end financial
statements.

| am not aware of any other information that warrants actuarial review for the purpose of profit or
solvency reporting.
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Financial Condition Report

The appointed actuary must prepare a Financial Condition Report which must:

a. |dentify and describe the material risks (of which it is reasonable to expect the appointed actuary
to be aware) facing a licensed insurer that, in the appointed actuary's opinion, pose a threat to
the licensed insurer’s ability to meet its solvency requirements now and in the future, and where
practicable quantify such risks

b. Comment on the steps taken or proposed by the licensed insurer to address the risks identified in
(a) above

c. Comment separately on the New Zealand business, these comments can be in line with
Australian requirements for financial condition reports

d. Advise the licensed insurer on whether in the appointed actuary's opinion, the licensed insurer
needs to consider reporting to the RBNZ under Section 24 of The Act, taking into account the
licensed insurer's forward-looking assessment of the solvency standard and the appointed
actuary's assessment of the licensed insurer's business plans, its enterprise risk management
practices and the external environment.

The appointed actuary in the financial condition report must comment on:

a. The solvency position of the insurer if a catastrophe or extreme event, such as outlined in the
Catastrophe Risk Capital Charge section of the Non-Life Standard, were to occur in New Zealand.

b.  Any difference in the financial condition of the New Zealand branch in comparison with the
insurer as a whole, which might have implications if the two were separated as a result of
regulatory action or litigation.

My FCR reviews HGIC at a company level rather than separately for the Australian and New Zealand
business. This is because the capital within HGIC is not allocated explicitly to either operation.

My FCR identifies and assesses the material risks facing HGIC, including mitigants addressing those risks
and thus meets the requirements of Section 56(d) of the Act.

HGIC is in a very strong financial position as at 31 December 2014 with a Capital Adequacy Multiple of
2.69. Capital requirements are expected to be met over the coming three years, and hence no reporting
under Section 24 of the Act is required. In my opinion HGIC is maintaining the solvency margin consistent
with the requirements under Section 21(2) (b) of the Act.

This strong position means that HGIC would be able to withstand a catastrophe or extreme event similar
to the Catastrophe Risk Capital Charge.

The Australian and New Zealand operations of HGIC are managed effectively as one entity and after the
analysis conducted for the ILVR and the FCR as at 31 December 2014 for HGIC, | conclude that the
financial condition of HGIC in total and the HGIC New Zealand Branch is sound.

The Australian and New Zealand operations of HGIC are managed in conjunction and | am not aware of
any material differences in the financial condition of the New Zealand Branch in comparison with the
insurer as a whole which might have implications if the two were separated.

Yours sincerely,

/,Z?_M,-ﬂ _-.__,I/ yg_.c-f

Richard Yee, FIAA, FNZSA
Appointed Actuary, Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd
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Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd
Directors’ report
31 December 2014

The directors present their report together with the financial staternents of Hallmark General Insurance Company
Ltd (the Company} for the year ended 31 December 2014 and the auditor's report thereon,

Directors
The following persons were direclors of the Company at any time during the financial year and up to the date of

this report:

JoAnne Maree Stephenson (Chairman) (appointed 26 February 2014)
Duncan Gerald West {appointed 26 February 2014}

Raymond Bruce Willing (resigned 30 April 2014)

Phitip Stuart Douglas Purcell (resigned 30 April 2014)

Neil Williarm Smart (resigned 30 April 2014)

Pzul Brian McCann (resigned 26 February 2074)

Scolt Kingsley Miller {resigned 28 April 2014)

Rachel Emma Cobb (appointed 23 June 2014)

Anna Elizabeth Gladman (appointed 28 April 2014)

Christopher Paul Knoblanche (appointed 268 February 2014}

Principal activities
The principat activity of the Company during the year was that of a general insurer, operating both in Ausiralia
and New Zealand. There has been no significant change in the nature of this activity during the year,

Review of operations
Total comprehensive income of the Company was $18,421,600 (2013: $19,116,000).

The growth in premium revenus was $3,875,000 (2013: $8,026,000), Claims expenses have increased by
$1,186,000 during 2014.

Significant changes in the state of affairs
There have been no significant changes in the state of affairs of the Company during the financial year.

Dividends
Dividends amounting {o $103,000,000 were paid by the Company in respect of the current financial vear (2013:

$nil).

Matters subsequent to the end of the financial year

No malter or circumstance has arisen since 31 December 2014 that has significanlly affected, or may
significantly affect:

{a) the Company's cperations;
(b) the resulls of those operations; or
{c) the Company's state of affairs.

Likely developments and expected results of operations
On § September 2014, General Electric Capital Corporation announced its intention to exit the consumer finance
markel. In pursuant to thal, General Electric Capital Corporation is assessing potential exit sirategies.

The Company will continue to operate in its existing business, being General Insurance, in the next financial year
or until an exit sirategy is decided upon and executed.

Further information on likely developments in the operations of the Company and the expected results of
operations have not been included in these financial statements because the directors believe it wauld be likely to
result in unreasonable prejudice (o the Company.

Environmental regulation

The Company's operations are subject to environmental regulations under Commonwealth and State legislation.
The board believes the Company has adequale systems in place for the management of ils environmental
obligations, and is not aware of any material breach of those environments! obligations as they apply to the
Company.




Hallmark General Insurance Company Lid
Directors' report

31 December 2014

{continued)

Indemnification and insurance of officers and auditors

Indemnification
Mandatory indemmnification and legal costs
To the maximum extent permitted by law, the Company:

(a) shall indemnify any current or former officer of the Company who was or is made or is threatened fo be
made a party or Is otherwise involved in any proceeding by reason of the fact he or she is or was an
officer of the Company against all liability and loss suffered and expenses reasonably incurred by that
officer (except & liability for legal costs); and

{b) shall indemnify an officer against legal costs incurred by that officer in defending any proceeding for
which that officer is entitled {o be indemnified pursuant to (a) above, in advance of its final disposition
provided however that such payment of legal costs shall only be made in advance of final disposition of
the proceeding upon receipt of an underlaking by the officer to repay all amounts advanced if it should
be ultimately determined that the officer is not entitled to be indemnified

Permissive indemnification and legal costs
To the maxirmum extent permilted by law, the Company:

(&} may indemnify any person who is not an officer of the Company (non-officer) against any llability or loss
incurred by that non-officer in their performance of, or in connection with, the rele undertaken by them for
or on behalf of the Company (except a (iability for legal costs); and

(by may indemnify a non-officer against legal costs incurred by that non-officer in defending any proceeding
for which such non-officer is entitled to be indemnified pursuant to (a) above, in advance of its final
disposition provided however that, to the extent required by law, such payment of legal costs shall only
be made in advance of final disposition of the proceeding upon receipt of an undertaking by the
nen-officer to repay all amounts advanced if it should be ultimately deterrmined that the non-officer is not
entifled to be indemnified,

Any such permissive indemnity must be evidenced by way of writlen agreement by any officer designated by the
board of directors for such purpose.

Insurance

During the financial year ended 31 December 2014 General Eleciric Company (the ullimate parent entity) has
paid premiums on behalf of the Company in respect of directors’ and officers' liability insurance
{non-indemnifiable coverage only) in respect of that year.

Subsequently, the ultimate parent entity has agreed to pay premiums on behalf of the Company, in respect of
directors’ and officers’ Hiability insurance (non-indemnifiable coverage only} in respect of the peried ending 11
June 2015.

Such insurance policies insure directors and officers against certain limited lfabilitles.

Directors have not included details of the nature of the liabifities covered or the amount of the premium paid as
such disclosure is prohibited under the terms of the insurance policy.

The Company has not during or since the end of the financial year paid or agreed to pay any premiums in respest
of any person who has been an auditor of the Company for the purposes of indemnifying them against any claims
by third parties arising from their audit report.



Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd
Directors' report

31 December 2014

(continued)

Proceedings on behalf of the company

No person has applied to the Court under section 237 of the Corporaiions Act 2001 jor leave o bring
proceedings on behalf of the Company, or to intervene in any proceedings to which the Company is a parly, for
the purpose of taking responsibilily on behalf of the Company for all or part of those proceedings.

No proceedings have been brought or infervened in on behalf of the Company with leave of the Courl under
section 237 of the Corporations Act 2001,

Lead Auditor's independence declaration
The lead auditor's independence declaration is required under section 307C of the Corporations Acf 2001, forms

part of the directors’ report for the year ended 31 December 2014 and is set out on page 4.

Rounding of amounts

The Company is of a kind referred fo in ASIC Class Crder 98/100 dated 10 July 1998 (as amended) and in
accordance with that class order, amounts in this report and the accompanying financial statements have been
rounded {o the nearest thousand dollars unless otherwise indicated.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of directors,

=)

Anne Maree Stephenson {Chairman)
/éireclor

Sydney

27 February 2015

.

Anna Elizabeth Gladman (Managing Director)
Director

Sydney

27 February 2015



Lead Auditor’s Independence Declaration under Section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001
To: the directors of Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd

I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, in relation fo the audit for the financial
year ended 31 December 2014 there have been:

(i)  no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as sef out in the
Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit; and

{(ii) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the
audit.

KPMG

/ S—

Andrew Reeves
Partner

Sydney
27 February 2015

KPMG, an Australian parinership and a member

firm of the KPMG network of independent member

frms afftiated wih KPMG Internationat Conperative  Liability lirmsted Dy a scheme approved under
(KPRMEG nternational, & Swiss entity, Professional Slandards Legisiation



Insurance premium revenus
Qutwards reinsurance premium expense
Net insurance premium revenue

Claims expenses
Net claims incurred

Acquisition costs
Administration expenses
Underwriting expenses

Underwriting result

Investment income
Investment expenses
Ctherincome

Profit before income tax

Income tax expense
Profit for the year

QOthar comprehensive income
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently fo profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations

Total items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax
Total comprehensive income for the year

Praofit is atfributable to:
Cwners of Halimark General Insurance Company Lid

Total comprehensive income for the year is atiributable to:
Owners of Hallmark General insurance Company Ltd

Hallmark General Insurance Company Lid
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December 2014

Notes

1(a)

1(b)

1{c)

2014 2013
$'000 $000
3,373 59,380
(42} (24)
63,331 59,356
12,040 10,854
12,040 10,854
12,255 11,284
23,018 21,484
35,273 33,768
16,018 15,734
7,837 9,504
(406) (400)
538 94
23,987 24,932
5,566 5,815
18,421 19,116
268 583
268 583
268 583
18,689 19,699
18,421 19,116
18,421 19,116
18,689 19,699
18,689 19,609

The above Stalement of Profif or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the

accompanying nofes.
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Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd
Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2014

2014 2013

Notes $'000 $'000
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2{(a) 170,517 211,363
Trade and other receivables pi{s)) 1,399 7,707
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 2{c) - 23,346
Deferred acquisition cosls 2(d} 9,486 10,864
Total current assets 181,402 253,280
Non-current assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or foss 2(c) - 23,044
Deferred acquisition cosis 2(d) 8,756 9,635
Deferred tax assets 3(@) 1,531 1,742
Total non-current assets 10,287 34,421
Total assets 191,689 287,701
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 2(e) 1,299 6,317
Current {ax liabilities 636 698
Provisions 3(b) 823 878
Unearned commission income 2(f) 2 2
Outstanding claims liabifily 2(g) 9,034 8,050
Unearned premium liability 2(h} 44,379 50,699
Total current liabjlities 56,178 66,744
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables 2(e) 359 146
Provisions 3(b}) 11 59
Ouistanding claims liability 2(g) 4,685 4,431
Unearned premium liability 2(h} 40,965 44,959
Totat non-current liabilities 46,020 49 595
Total liabilities 102,198 116,339
Net assets 89,491 171,362
EQUITY
Contributed equity 4(a) 2,000 2,000
Reserves 4(b) 56,110 53,402
Retained earnings 31,381 115,960
Total equity 89,491 171,362

The above Statemen! of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
6



Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 December 2014

Attributable to owners of Halimark General Insurance

Company Ltd
Contributed Retained Total
equity Reserves  earnings equity
$'000 $'60D $'000 $'000
Balance at 1 January 2013 2,000 50,253 96,844 149,097
Profit for the year - - 19,116 18,116
Other comprehensive income - 583 - 583
Total comprehensive income for the year - 583 18,116 19,692
Tax consolidation reserve - 2,566 - 2,566
Balance at 31 December 2013 2,000 53,402 115,960 171,362
Balance at 1 January 2014 2,000 53,402 115,960 171,362
Profit for the year - - 18,421 18,421
Other comprehensive income - 268 - 268
Total comprehensive income for the year - 268 18,421 18,689
Dividends paid . - (103,000) (103,000}
Tax consolidation reserve - 2,440 - 2440
Balance at 31 December 2014 2,000 56,110 31,381 89,491

The above Sfatement of Changes in Equily should be read in conjunction with the accompanying netes.
7



Cash flows from operating activities

Net premium received

Qutward reinsurance expense

Claims paid

Payments to suppliers and employees

Interest received

Dividends received

Income taxes ailocated from tax consolidated group
Net cash inflow from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Payment for financial assets

Proceeds from sale of financial assets

Net cash inflowf{outflow} from investing activitles

Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid to company's shareholders
Net cash {outflow)} from financing activities

Net {decrease)fincrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

The above Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

8

Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 December 2014

2014 2013
Notes $'000 $060
58,311 73,548
(42) (24)
(10,857} (11,344)
(38,360) {40,695)
8,905 8,278
- 85
(2,602) (2,247)
5(a) 15,355 27,601
- (20,724)
45,952 19,834
45,052 {893)
{103,008) -
{103,000} -
{41,693) 26,708
211,363 180,156
847 4,499
2(a) 170,517 211,363




Halimark General insurance Company Ltd
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2014
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Halimark General Insurance Company Lid
Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2014
{continued)

Financial performance

This section provides additional information about those individual line items relating to financial performance that
management considers most relevant in the context of the operations of the entity.

1 Profit or loss information

(a} Netinsurance premium revenue

2014 2013
$'000 $'000
Gross written premium 52,519 65,698
Movement in unearned premiums 10,854 {6,318}
Outwards reinsurance premium expense {42} (24}
Net premium revenue 63,331 59,3566
(b} Net claims incurred
2014 2013
Current Year Prior Years Total Cutrent Year Prior Years Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 5000 $'000

Gross claims incurred

and related expenses -

undiscounted 13,521 {1,517} 12,004 12,444 {1,570) 10,874
Discount and discount

movement - gross

claims incurred {210) 246 36 {207) 187 (20)
13,311 {1,271} 12,040 12,237 {1,383) 10,854
Net claims incurred 13,311 (1,271) 12,040 12,237 {1,383) 10,854

Current period claims relate to risk borne in the current financial year. Prior period claims relate to a
reassessment of the risks borne in all previous financial years.

Prior year release of 31,271,000 was due to better than expected claims across both the leans and credit card
products (New Zealand branch} and better than expected payments for loans disability and higher than expected
claim terminations for loan unemployment {Australia).

10



Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd
Notes to the financlal statements
Far the year ended 31 Decernber 2014

{continued)
1 Profit or loss information (continued)
(e} Investmentincome
2014 2013
$'000 $'000
Interest income 8,275 8,021
Realised net gainsf(losses) 155 970
Unrealised net (losses)/gains (593) 318
Dividend income - 189
Total investment income 7,837 9,504
{d} Profit before income tax
2014 2013
$'000 $'000
Profit before income fax includes the following specific expenses:
Employee costs
Personnel cost 8,083 8,810
Contribution to superannuation fund G40 784
Change in annual and long service leave provisian (139) 78
Other administrative expenses
Marketing fees 176 548
Management fees 10,328 8,856
{e) Income tax expense
(i) Income lax expense
2014 2013
5'000 $'000
Current tax expense 57198 5,857
Deferred tax expense (note 3(a)} 52 (G1}
Adjusimenis for current tax of prior years {205} (80)
Income tax expense 5,566 5,816

11



Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2014

1 Profit or loss information (continued)
{e} Income tax expense (continued)

{ii) Reconcifiation of income tax expense to prima facie tax payable

(contirued)

2014 2013
5'000 $'000
Profit from continuing operations before income tax expense 23,987 24932
Tax at the Australian tax rate of 30% (2013: 30%) and tax at the New
Zealand tax rate of 28% (2013: 28%) 7.074 7,355
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible/({axable) in calculating
taxable income:
Entertainment 5 10
Imputation credits “ 18
Non taxable income {1,512) {1,425}
Tax offset for franked dividends - {62)
5,567 5,896
Adjustments for current tax of prior periods {1) {80}
Income (ax expense 5,566 5816

12



Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd
Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(continued)

Balance sheet management

This section provides additional information about those Individual line items in the statement of financial position
that management considers most relevant in the context of the operations of the entity,

2 Financial assets and financial liabilities

(a) Cash and cash equivalenis

2014 2013
$'000 $000
Current assets
Cash at bank 9,698 12,822
Short term deposits 160,818 198,541
Total cash and cash equivalents 170,517 211,363
{b) Trade and other receivables
2014 2013
$'000 $'000
Gurrent assets
Trade receivables - 1,443
Other receivables 1,399 6,264
Total trade and other receivables 1,399 7,707

These balances include amounts receivable from related parties (note 13(b)).
The carrying value disclosed above approximates fair value at end of the reporting period.

(e} Financial assets at fair value through profitor loss

2014 2013
$'000 3000
Current assets
Fixed interest securities . 23,346
Non-current assets
Fixed interest securifies - 23,044

13




Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd
MNotes to the financlal statements
For the year ended 31 December 2014

2 Financial assets and financial liabilifies {continued)

(d) Deferred acquisition costs

Current assets
Deferred acquisition costs

Non-current assets
Deferred acquisition costs

Reconeiliation of changes in deferred acquisition costs:

Opening balance at 1 January
Actuisifion costs incurred during the year
Amortisation charged to profit or loss
Closing batance at 31 December

{e) Trade and other payables

Current liabilities

Trade payables
Gther payables

Non-current liabilities
Other payables

The carrying value disclosed above approximates fair value at end of the reporting period.
These balances include amounts payable to related parlies {note 13(b)).

{f} Unearned commission income

Opening batance at 1 January

Commission income on premium earned during the year

Closing balance at 31 December

(continued)
2014 2013
$'000 $'000
9,486 10,864
8,756 9,635
2014 2013
$'000 $'600
20,459 18,267
9,998 13,518
{12,255) {11,284)
18,242 20,499
2014 2013
$'000 $'000
7’ -
1,292 6,317
1,209 6,317
359 146
2014 2013
$'000 $'000
2 1
- 1
2 2




Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2014

(continued)
2 Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
{g) Outstanding claims liability
2014 2013
$'000 $'000
Central estimate 10,571 9,540
Risk margin 1,743 1,533
Claims handling expense 1,724 1,781
14,038 12,834
Discount to present value {319) {353)
Gross outstanding claims liability 13,719 12,481
Current 8,034 8,050
Neon-current 4,685 4,431
Total outstanding claims liability 13,719 12,481

il The following ranges of discount rates ware used in the measurement of oulstanding claims and reinsurance
recoveries.

Ausfralia

The current year dliscount rate is 2.3% (2013: 2.5%).

The subsequent years discount rate is 2.0% - 3.8% {2013; 2.5% - 5.6%).

The weighted average expecled term to settlement of the outstanding claims from the end of the reporting period
is estimated fo be 1.02 years (2013: 1.22 years).

New Zealand Branch

The current year discount rate is 3.54 %(2013: 3.20%)

The subsequent years discount rate is 3.54% (2013: 3.20%)

The weighled average expected term fo settfement of the outstanding claims from the end of the reporting period
Is estimated to be 0.70 years {2013: 0.63 years)

(i) Risk margin
Process for determining risk margin

The risk margin is an additional allowance for uncertainty in the ultimate cost of claims. The overall margin
adopted is defermined by the board after considering the uncertainty in the portiolio, industry trends and the
Company's risk appefite.

To determine the margin adopted the appointed acluary has reviewed the factors impacting the porifolio to
establish a recommended margin at the [evel required by the board. Faclors considered include:

+  variability of claims experience of the portfolio;
» quality of historical data;

- diversification between different classes within the portfolio; and

* Increase in uncertainty due to future economic environment and legislative changes.

The level of uncertainty varies between classes of business, as such the adopied risk margin varies between
business classes. The risk margin is applied to the gross central estimate.

The aggregate risk margin, after diversliication allowance, is intended lo achleve a 90% (2013: 90%) probabiity
of sufficiency,

The risk margins applied to the major segments of the portiolio for 90% (2013: 90%) level of adequacy are;
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Hallmark General insurance Company Ltd
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 20614

(continued)
2 Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
{g) Outstanding claims liahility {continued)
Process for determining risk margin (continued)
2014 2013
% %
Australia
Consumer credit insurance - disability 12.0 12.2
Consumer credit insurance - unemployment 3086 30.6
New Zealand
Consumer credit insurance - disability 19.7 19.7
Consumer credit insurance - unemployment 45.9 45.9
{ii) Reconciliation of movement in discounted oufstanding claims liability
2014 2013
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross Reinsurance Net
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 3000 $'000
Opening balance
at 1 January 12,481 . 12,481 12,531 - 12,631
Current year
claims incurred 13,310 - 13,310 12,237 - 12,237
Change in
previous years
claims (1,282} - (1,282) (11,505) - {1,508)
Current year
claims paid /
reinsurance
recovered (4,034} - (4,034) {4,592} - (4,592}
Pravious year
claims paid/
relnsurance
recovared {6,.879) - {6,879) (6,945) - {6,945)
13,596 - 13,596 11,726 - 11,726
Effect of change ’
in discount rate 123 - 123 755 - 755
Closing balance
at 31 December 13,718 - 13,719 12,481 - 12,481

(iv} Claims development lables

Claims development tables are disclosed in order {0 put the claims estimates included in the financial statements
into context, allowing comparison of those claims estimates with the claims resulls seen In previous years. In
effect, the table highlights the Company's abilily to provide a reliable estimate of the total value of claims. The top
part of the table provides a review of current estimates of cumulative claims and demonstrates how the estimated
claims have changed at subsequent reporting or accidents year-ends. The lower part of the table provides a
reconciliation of the fotal reserve included in the statement of financial position and the estimates of cumulative
claims,
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Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
(continued)

2 Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
(9} Cutstanding claims liability {continued)

Gross
2010
and
Reporting Year prier*  2071* 2012 2013 2014  Total

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 £'000
Estimate of gross ultimate claims cost

At end of reporting year 42,251 7,564 11,881 11,552 12,753
One year later 37,631 8,506 10,139 10,582 -
Two years later 37,014 8,802 10,254 - -
Three years later 37,508 9,047 - - -
Four years later 38,052 - - - -
Current estimate of cumulative claims 38,052 9,047 10,254 10,582 12,753 80,588
Cumulative payments to date (37,928) (8,642) (9,183) (8,258) (4,438) (68,451)
Undiscounted claims handling expenses 18 58 155 335 1,233 1,800
Gross outstanding claims - undiscounted 142 464 1,224 2,659 9,548 14,037
Discount impact {2} (9) (29) (87} {211) (318}
Gross outstanding claims - discounted 140 455 1,195 2,592 8,337 13,719
Ner

20110

and
Reporting Year prior*  2011* 2012 2013 2014 Total

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Estimate of net ultimate claims cost

At end of reporting year 42,251 7.564 11,881 11,552 12,753

One year laler 37,631 8,506 160,138 10,582

Two years later 37,014 8,802 10254 -

Three years later 37,508 9,047 - -

Four years later 38,052 - - -

Current estimate of cumulative claims 38,052 9047 10,254 10,582 12,753 80,688
Cumulative paymenis to dale (37.928) (8,642} (9,185) (8,258) (4.438) (68,451)
Undiscounted claims handling expenses 18 59 165 335 1,233 1,800
Net outstanding claims - undiscounted 142 464 1,224 2,659 9,548 14,037
Discount impact (2) (9 (29) (67) {211} (318)
Net cutstanding claims - discounted 140 455 1,198 2,592 9,337 13,719

* All actuarial data relating to the New Zealand Branch of the Company, prior to the 5th March 2012 , relates {o
the insurance portfolioc of Simply Insurance New Zealand Limiled, and is disclosed to reflect the historical
actuarial profile of the insurance portfolio, which was transferred to the Branch on the 5th March 2012.

(v} Liability adequacy test

The liability adequacy test (LAT) is an assessment of the carrying amount of unearned premium liabilities and is
conducted at the end of each reporting period. The test is calculated separately for each portfofio of contracts that
are subject to broadly similar risks and are managed together as a single gortfotio.

For the purposes of the liability adequacy test, the net aremium liabilities at a 75% probability of sufficiency as at

31 December 2014 is 357,321,986 (2013: $68,080,250), therefore the labilily adequacy test at reporting date
resulted in a surplus for the company.
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(continued)

2 Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
(k) Unearned premium liability

2014 2013

$'cco $'000
Opening balance as at 1 January 95,658 87.082
Premiums written during the year 52,477 85,675
Premiums earned during the year (62,791} (57,008}
Closing balance as at 31 December 85,344 95,658
Current 44,379 50,699
Non-current 40,965 44,959
Total unearned premium lability 85,344 95,658

{i} [Fairvalue measurements

(i} Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial
instrumenis that are recognised and measured at fair value in the financial statements. To provide an indication
about the refiability of the inpuls used in determining fair value, the Company has classified ils financial
instruments info the three levels prescribed under the accounting standards. An explanation of each level follows
underneath the table.

Level 1 level 2 Level 3 Total
31 December 2014 $'000 $'000 S'Co0 5000
Financial assets
Financial assets designated at fair value through
profit or loss - - - -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
31 Decermnber 2013 $000 $'000 $'000 5000
Financial assets
Financial assets designated at fair value through
profit or loss 46,390 - - 46,390
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Halimark General Insurance Company Ltd
Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(continued)

2 Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
{i} Fair value measurements {continued)
Level 1: Quoted prices {unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markats.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Jevel 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly {i.e. as prices} or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices), including quoted prices for similar assets and
liabilities in active markets.

Level 3: Inputs {o the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fafr value measurement.

(i) Valuation techniques used o delermine fair values
Specific valuation techniques used {o vaiue financial instruments include:

»  The use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments; and

*  The fair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis.

3 Non-financial assets and liabilities

(a} Deferred tax assets

2014 2013

$'000 $'000
The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:
Employee enfittements 423 495
Operating accruals 624 707
indirect claims handling expense 422 407
Cther 62 133
Total deferred tax assets 1,531 1,742
(i} Movemenisin deferred fax asseis
Movements in deferred tax assets were as follows:

2014 203

$'000 $'000
Opening balance at 1 January 1,742 2,460
Charged to profit or loss (note 2(e}) (52) 61
Over provision in prior years (159) (779)
Closing balance at 31 December 1,531 1,742
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

{continued)
3 Non-financial assets and liabilities {continued)
{b) Provisions
2014 2013
$'000 $o00
Employee entitlements - current
Annual leave 402 425
Long service leave 426 553
Total employee entitlements - current 828 978
Employee entittements - non current:
Long service leave 11 59
Total employee entitiements - non current 11 59
Total number of employees as at 31 December 2014; 57 (2013 68)
4 Equity
{a) Contributed equity
Share capital
2014 2013 2014 2013
No. of Shares  No. of Shares $'000 $'000
Paid up ordinary shares 10,001 10,001 2,000 2,000

(i) Ordinary shares

The Company does not have authorised capital or par value in respect of i{s issued shares. All issued shares are

iully paid.

Ordinary shares entitle the holder to participate in dividends and the proceeds on winding up of the Company in

proeportion to the number of and amounts paid on the shares held.

On a show of hands every holder of ordinary shares present at a meeting in person or by proxy, is entitled to one

vole, and upon a poll each share is entitled to one vote.

(if) Parent entitics

Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd is owned by Hallmark Life Insurance Company Lid with $9.69%
majorily interest and AVGO Access Ply Lid with 0.09% minority interest, both which are incorporated in Australia.
The Company's ultimate parent entily is General Electric Company, which is Incorporated in the United States of

America.
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4 Equity (continued)

(b} Reserves

Foreign currency transiation reserve
Tax consolidation reserve
Tofal reserves

(i Movements in reserves
Movements in each class of reserves were as follows:

Reserves

Foreign currency fransiation reserve

Opening balance at 1 January

Exchange differences on iranslation of foreign operations
Closing balance 31 December

Tax consolidation reserve

Opening balance at 1 January

Current tax provision transferred to head entity
Closing balance 31 December
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(continued)
2014 2013
§'000 5000
871 603
55,239 52,799
56,110 53,402
2014 2013
$'000 $'000
603 20
268 583
871 603
52,799 50,233
2,440 2,566
55,239 52,799




Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd
Notes to the financlal statements
For the year ended 31 December 2014

(continued)
5 Cash flow information
{a) Reconciliation of profit after income tax to net cash flows from operating activities
2014 2013
§'000 $'000
Profit for the year 18,421 19,118
Adjustments
Realised (gains)iosses on sale of financial assets (155) (979}
Unrealised loss/(gains) in value of financial assets 593 (318)
Effect of foreign exchange on cash and cash equivalents {847} {4,489)
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
{Increase)/decrease in trade deblors 5,684 9,702
Increasef(decrease) in trade and other payables {4,805) (8,154)
(Increase)decrease in other receivables 624 137
Decreasei{increase) in deferred acquisition cosis 2,257 {2,231
(Decrease)/increase in employees entitlements {198} 87
{Decrease)fincrease in oulstanding claim liability 1,238 (50)
{Cecrease)/increase in ungarned premium liability (10,314} 8,576
{Decrease}increase in tax consolidation reserve 2,440 2,557
(Decrease)/increase in foreign currency translation reserve 268 592
(Increase)/decrease in net deferred tax assets 211 718
{Decrease)/increase in current tay fiability {62} 364
Net cash inflow from operating activities 15,355 27,601
Risk

This section of the notes discusses the Campany's exposure to varlous risks and shows how these could affect
the Company's financial position and perfoermance.

6 Actuarial assumptions and methods

The Company writes consumer credit insurances. These classes of business can be classified as follows:
Consumer credit insurance

The risks covered in this group include:

Involuntary unemployment
Disabllity

Gap

Merchandise and price prolection
Stolen card cover

. = s ¥

Process used to determine outstanding claims liahilities (actuarial methods)

The general approach to actuarial estimation of insurance ligbilities is to analyse all available past experience,
including the number of reported and finalised claims, timing and amounts of claim payments. This analysis
allows patierns to be Identified in the past experience. Based on this, development palterns associated with the
run-off of outstanding claims and premium liabilities at the balance date can be estimated.

The determination of outstanding claims liabiiities involves two steps:
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6 Actuarial assumptions and methods (continued)
Process used to determine outstanding claims liabilities {actuarial methods) {continued)

(i} The determination of the central estimate of outstanding claims at the balance date. The central estimate of
cutstanding claims includes an allowance for claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) and the further
development of reporied claims, also known as incurred but not enough reported (IBNER).

The ceniral estimate has no deliberate bias towards either over or under estimation. Generally speaking,
this means that the central estimate is assessed to have a 50% chance of adequacy.

(i) The delermination of a risk margin and claims handling expense provision io be added to the central
estimates of outstanding claims.

Involuntary unemployment and disability - branch
in determining the central estimate of the outstanding claims liabilities, separate analyses were performed on the
open (including pending} and 1BNR claims.

The individual claimant projection methed was adopted for the open and pending claims. This method examines
the likelihood of claimants remaining on benefit from month to month and applies an expecled fulure claim
duration to the actual level of monthly benefits for Individual claims. For pending claims, an additional assumption
was made on the probability of the claim being accepted in the first place (claims acceptance rate).

For IBNR claims, the centrat estimale of the outstanding claims liabilities is estimaled by assuming a number of
IBNR claims {o be reported by insurance term, underwriting period, accident period and reporiing period. The
individual claimant projection method is then applied with an assumed average monthly benefit and claims

acceplance rate.

Involuntary unemployment and disabifity - non branch

Aggregate projection methods such as payment per claim incurred (PPCI) and payment per claim open (PPCO)
are adopled for assessing the outstanding claims of non branch portfolios.

GAP, stofen card cover, merchandise and price protection

The standard actuarial projection technigque of payment per claim finalised (PPCF) was adopted in the
determination of the central estimate of the outstanding claims Hability for this risk, where claims are generally
finalised with the payment of a single lump sum amount,

Actuarial assumptions

The personal line insurances are currently in run off and the outstanding claims liability is immaterial. The key
actuarial assumptions for the delermination of the oulstanding claims liabilities of the consumer credi insurances
are as follows:

2014 2014 2014 2013 2013 2013
Unemployment*  Disability* GAP/Price  Unemployment* Disabitity* GAP/Price
protection Prolection
Average weighted
term to setliement*  2.9-4,7 months 8.7 maonths 4.2 months  2.2-3.5 months 6.9 monihs 4.5 monlhs
Average monthly
benefits/average $250-$750 per $250-$750 per $250-8750 per  5250-3750 per
claim size* month month $110 month month $225
Expense rate 15% 15% 5% 17% 17% 17%
Discount rate 2.0%pa-3.8%pa 2.0%pa-3.8%pa 2.5%pa-5.6%pa 2.5%pa-5.6%pa 2.5%pa-5.6%pa 2.5%pa-5.6%pa

*varies depending on the insurance terms of the policy and underwriting period
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6 Actuarial assumptions and methods (continued)

Process used to determine actuarial assumptions

A description of the processes used to determine the above key actuarial assumptlions is provided below:

»  Average weighted term to settfement from the end of the reporling period
For unemployment and disability claims, the average weighted ferm {o seltlement represents the amount of
time needed for the outstanding claims liability to run off completely, taking into account fulure claim
terminations. This is based on claim termination analysis performed on the historical claims experiences. The
clairm termination analysis is performed separately for unemployment and disability.

Termination rates by duration from the date of incideni are adopted and these are used to derive the
probabilily of payment on each claim for each month into the future. This projection produces the average
weighted term to settlement,

«  Average monthly benefils / Average claim size
The average monthly benefit and average claim size assumption is used in the estimation of the outstanding
claims liabilily relating lo IBNR claims. For disabilily and unemployment claims the average monthly benefit
assumpiion s determined after analysing the historical relativity of the average monihly benefit for ¢taims to
the average monthly benefit for all policies underwritten (from the same period as those that result in claims).

»  Expense rale
The adopied claims handling expense rate of 15% (2013:17%) of the projected gross claim payments, was
determined based on the results of an expense investigation caried out in 2014,

« Discount rafe
The central estimates of the ouistanding claims liabilities were discounted to allow for future investment
income atlributable to the liabilities during the run off period. The future investment earnings assumptions are
estimates of the future annual risk free rates of return. They have been derived from the yield curve on
Australian Government Bonds as at 31 December 2014 as provided by the Australian Financial Review.

Sensitivity analysis

The oufstanding claims liabilities included in the reported results are calculated based on the key actuarial
assumptions as disclosed above. The movemaent in any of the above key actuarial assumptions will impact the
performance and equily of the Company. The table below describes how a change in each of the assumptions
will affect the ouistanding claims liabilities.

Impacton net  Impact on total

outstanding outstanding
claims liabilities claims liabilities
Key actuarial assumptions  Changes (8000's) (%}
2014
Claim termination rate* Reduce the branch credit termination rates 1,017 11.5
by 10%
Average monthly benefits* Increase the branch credit insurances 373 4.2
IBNR average monthly benefits by 10%
Number of IBNR claims* Increase the number of branch credit 373 4.2
insurances IBNR claims by 16%
Claims handling expense rale  Increase from 15% o 19% 306 3.4
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(continued)

& Actuarial assumptions and methods (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

2013

Claim termination rate* Reduce the branch credit termination rates 623 8.3
by 10%

Average monthly benefits* Increase the branch credi insurances 173 2.6
IBNR average monthly benefits by 10%

Number of IBNR claims* Increase the number of branch credit 173 2.6
insurances IBNR claims by 10%

Claims handling expense rate  Increase from 15% to 19% 201 3.0

* Branch credi insurance only

New Zealand Branch

The Company writes the following fines of business in New Zealand:
Consumer credit insurances

The risks covered in this group include:

+  [nvoluntary unemployment
+ Disability

+  Merchandise and price protection
« Sfolen card cover

During 2007, the New Zealand Branch ceasad wriling policies categorised as hire purchase insurance and
personal foan insurance (“old products™ and commenced writing a new consumer credit insurance product (“new
products”, from August 2007}, As of 31 December 2014, no liability has been projected for old products with all
policies expired. From May 2011, the New Zealand Branch staried offering a new credit card balance protection
product called GEM Visa, which provides cover for disability, unemployment and merchandise proteclion, price
protection and stolen cards cover.

Effective 5 March 2012, the insurance business of Simply insurance New Zealand Limited (“SINZ"), a partner
company within the GE Capital Group, was transferred into Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd , This
husiness now operates as & branch in New Zealand.

Process used to determine outstanding claims liabilities {(actuarial methods)

The general approach fo actuarial estimation of insurance liabilities is to analyse all available past experience,
including numbers of reported and finalised claims, amounts of claim payments, changes in case estimates and
incurred loss ratios. This analysis allows patterns to be identified in the past experience. Based on this,
development palterns associaied with the run-off of outstanding claims and premium liabilities at the balance
date can be estimated,

The determination of outstanding claims liabilities involves two steps:

(i) The determination of the central estimate of outstanding claims at the balance date. The central estimate of
outstanding claims includes an allowance for incurred but not reported (IBNR) claims and the further
development of reported claims.

The central estimate has no defiberate bias lowards either over or under estimation. Generally speaking,
this means that the central estimate is assessed to have a 50% chance of adequacy.

(i) The determination of a risk margin and claims handling expense provision to be added to the central
estimates of outstanding elaims.
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6 Actuarial assumptions and methods (continued)

The estimation of outstanding claims liabilities has been performed separately for each of the claim types arising
under the different policies, namely: death, disability, material damage, unemployment and merchandise
protection, price protection and stolen cards.

Disability and unemployment {except credit cards)

In determining the central estimate of the outstanding claims liabilities, separate analyses were performed on the
open {including pending) claims and IBNR claims.

The individual claimant projection method was adopted for the open and pending claims. Claim payments have
bean projected from the valuation date untif the end of the policy term, taking into account the probability of
termination and fimits fo claim payments as stipulated in the policy. The claim payments are based on the
monthly loan instalments for each individual claim. For pending claims, an acceptance rate assumption is also
applied in the valuation.

Fer IBNR claims, the central estimate of the outstanding claims liability was based on an estimated number of
IBNR claims and average claim sizes. The number of IBNR claims was based on analysis of claim numbers for
lines of business in runoff and analysis of claim frequency for line of business currently underwritten. The
average claim size is estimated from expected average total duration and average monthly benefits, with policy
design taken into account, For example, the consumer credit insurance has a maximum unemployment payment
period of three months, which was reflected in the analysis.

Disabiiity, unemployment and merchandise protection, price protection and stolen cards {credit cards
only)

The standard acluarial projection technique of payment per claim finalised (PPCF) was adopted in the
determination of the ceniral estimate of the outstanding claims liability for this risk, where claims are generally
finalised wilh the payment of a single fump sum amount. This involves estimating the number of future claim
finalisations and average claim sizes. The number of future finalisations was based on analysis of claim reports,
finalisations. The average claim size was based on the payments made on claims finalised.

Actuarial assumptions

The key actuarial assumpiions for the determination of the outstanding claims are as follows:

2014 2014 2013 2013
Disability™ Unemployment™ Disability™* Unemployment™
{excl credif cards} {excl credit cards) (excl credit cards) (excl credit cards)
Termination rates 4,5-14,5%* 10.0.25.0%" 4.5-14.5%%* 10.0-32,0%"
Average welghted term to seftiement 10.9 months 2.5-3.8 months*™* 9.6 monlhs 2.5-3.7 months**
Number of IBNR claims accepted (lofal} Y4 62 88 a0
Average Clairmn Size for IBNR claims $5,300 §1,200-%1,800 $4,900 $1,250-51,850
Discount rate 3.54% 3.54% 3.20% 3.20%

* Assumption varies according to the future claim duration

** Varies depending on underwriting period
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6 Actuarial assumptions and methods (continued)

Actuarial assumptions {continued})

2014 2014 2014 2013 2013 2013
Merchandise
protection, Merchandise
price protection prateclion, price
and stolen protection and
Disability (credit Unemployment cards (credit Disabilily (credit Unemployment  stolen cards
cards) (credit cards) cards) cards) {credit cards)  {credit cards)
Average setifement
size $2,500-52,800  $1,700-52,500 $300 $2,500-52,800 §1,700-82 500 $350
Number of fufure
finalisations G1 115 31 45 82 57

Other assumptions

The outstanding claims provision includes a claim handling expense of 15% and an additional 1% for medical
expenses, with a prudential margin calculated at a 90% probability of adequacy.

Process used to determine actuarial assumptions

A description of the processes used to determine the above key actuarial assumptions is provided balow:

+  Terminalion rates
Termination rates by claim duration from the date of incident are adopted and these are used to derive the
probability of payment on each claim for each month into the future.,

« Average weighted term to sefflement from the end of the reporting period
The average term to settlement from reporting date is based on ¢laim termination analysis performed on the
historical claims experiences. The claim {ermination analysis is performed separately for unemployment and
disability.

Termination rates by duration from the date of incident are adopted and these are used 1o derive the
probability of payment on each claim for each month into the {future. This projection produces the average
weighted term to settlement.

»  Average claim size for IBNR claims (new products only)
For disability and unemployment, the adopted average claim size was based on two types of analysis; the
expected average total duration for each claim type and benefit duration {only for unemployment) muliiplied
by the average monthly payment amount for each ¢laim type, and the hislorical average clalm size. The
average duration was based on the assumed termination rates.

= Number of IBNR claims (new products only}
The number of IBNR claims was based on an analysis of historical claim numbers for policies in runoff and
an analysis of claim frequency for lines of business currently underwritten,

«  Average claim size for seitlements (credit cards only}
For credit cards policies, the adopted average claim size was based on historic ratios of claim payments to
numbers of claims finalised.

= Number of fufure finalisations (credit cards only)
For credit cards policies, the number of fulure finalisations is based on an analysis of historical claim reports
and finalisation rates. This then enables the future numbers of reports, handled claims and finalisations {o be
projected.
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6 Actuarial assumptions and methods {continued)

Process used to determine actuarial assumptions {continued)

+  Expenserafe
The adopted ¢lzims handling expense rate of 15% of the projected gross claim payments, was determined

based on the results of an expense Investigation carrled out in 20114, An additional 1% for medical expenses
is applied to disability claims.

+  Discount rate
The central estimates of the outstanding claims liabilities for the periodic benefits were discounted to allow for

future investment income altributable to the liabilities during the run off period. The discount faclor was based
on the annual risk free rates of return from the yield curve on New Zealand Government Bonds.

Sensitivity analysis

The outstanding claims liabilities included in the reported results are calculated based on the key aciuarial
assumplicns as disclosed above. The movement in any of the above key actuarial assumptions will impact the
performance and equity of the Company. The table below describes how a change in each of the assumptions
will affect the oulstanding claims liabilities. The ouistanding claims fiabilitles are on a discounted basis and
include claim handling expenses and a risk margin at the 0% probability of adequacy.

Impact of changes in assumptions for old and new products on tolal outstanding claims liability:

Impacton net  Impact on fofal

outstanding outstanding
claims liabilities claims liabilities
Key actuarial assumptions Changes ($000's) (%)
Claim termination rate® Reduce 2l termination rates by 10% 138 4.4
IBNR Increase IBNR ACS by 10% / Increase 126 4.0
number of IBNR claim by 10%
Claims handling expense rate Increase the claims handling expense rate 68 2.2

from 15% o 19%

Impact of changes in assumptions for credit cards on lotal suistanding claims provision:

Impacton net  Impact on total
claims provision net claims

Key actuarial assumptions  Changes (5000's) provision (%)
Claim development . Increase chain ladder factors by 10% +38 +1.2%
Average settlement size Increase average settlement size by 10% +37 +1.2%
Claims handling expense rate Increase ihe claims handling expense rate +29 +0.9%

from 15% to 19%
Changes to key assumptions

There are no major changes during the year.
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7 Financial risk management

This nole explains the Company's exposure to financial risks and how these risks could affect the Company's
fulure financial periormance. Current year profit or loss information has been included where relevant io add

further context.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss due to a counterparty failing to perform their confractual chligations and
principaily arises through the Company's investment in financial instruments, receivables from related or other
parties, and cfaims on reinsurance confracts.

The following policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the Company's exposure to credit risk:

(i} Financial assels

The Company's investiment mandate sets out the investment management guidelines approved by the board,
The guidelines establish credit approval authorities, concentrations limils, and approved investment poriioiio
parameters, these guidelines comply with the GE Capital Corporation Financial Institutions Credit Standards
{GECC FICS) policy which sels out concenfration fimits and additional portfolio parameters. The Investment
Committee and the investment manager conduct a regular review of the investment holdings, compliance is
monitored and exposures or breaches are reported to the board. The mandate is reviewed regularly for
pertinence and for changes in the risk environment,

The Company only invests with counterparties that have a credit rating of at least A1/A from Standard & Poor's
{8&P). The Company further limits its exposure to credit risk by setting individual exposure limits. There is no
significant concentration of credit sk and management does not expect any counterparty to fail o meet its
obligations,

(i} Reinsurance assels

Reinsurance is placed wilh counterparties within the guidelines of the reinsurance management strategy (ReMS)
. Counterparties must have an S&P eredil rating of at least A. The Company further sets its exposure to credit
risk by setting individual exposure limits. At the end of each reporling period, the management performs an
assessment of creditworthiness of reinsurers and updates the reinsurance management strategy (ReMS).

(i) Trade and other receivables

The Company's maximum credit risk exposure af balance date is limited io the carrying amount of the financial
assels as staled in the statement of financial position. The Company does not have a significant concentration of
credit risk with any counterparty, other than related parties {See note 13).
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7 Financial risk management (continued)

(a) Credit risk {continued)

2014

Financial assets

Cash and cash

eguivalenis

Trade and other

receivables

Financial assets at fair

value

through profit or loss
Fixed interest
securities

Total credit risk

exposure

2013

Financia! assets

Cash and cash

equivalents

Trade and other

receivables

Financial assets at fair

value

through profit or loss
Fixed interest
securilies

Total credit risk

(continued)
The table below shows the Company's maximum exposure to credit risk at balance date.
Mon- Non-
investment  investment Total neither
Investment grade grade past due nor Past due or
grade safisfactory * unsatisfactory impaired impaired Total
$000 $'000 $'o00 $'000 $'00C $'000
170,517 - - 170,517 170,617
- 1,399 - 1,399 1,399
170,517 1,399 - 171,916 171,816
Non- Nan-
investment  investment Total neither
Investment grade grade past due nor Pastdue or
grade satisfactory * unsatisfactory impaired impaired Total
5000 $'000 $'000 5000 $'000 $'000
211,363 - - 211.363 - 211,383
- 7.707 - 7.707 - 7,707
46,390 - - 46,390 - 46,390
257,753 7,707 - 265,460 - 265,460

exposure

* A recelvable is deemed satisfactory when management is satisfied the obligor has the capacity 1o meet its

financial abligations.

The table below classifies the financial assets of the Company by counterparty credit rating:
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7 Financial risk management (continued)
{a) Credit risk (continued)
AAA AA A BEB Not rated Total

2014 5'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents - 1,357 168,160 - - 170,617
Trade and other receivables - - - - 1,389 1,398
Financial assets at fair value
through
profit or loss

Fixed interest securities - ~ - - - -
Total credit risk exposure “ 1,357 169,160 - 1,399 171,916

AAA AA A BBB Not rated Total

2013 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000 $'000
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents - - 211,363 - - 211,363
Trade and other receivables - - - - 7,707 7,707
Financial assets at fair value
through
profit or loss

Fixed interest securities 8,845 37,545 - - - 46,390
Total credit risk exposure 8,845 37,545 211,363 - 7,707 265,460

* The receivables are largely with related parties (see note 13(b)}.

Mo receivables are past due or impaired at balance date (2013: Nil).

(b) Liguidity risk

Liguidity risk Is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Company's objective and funding strategy seeks lo ensure liquidity and diversily of funding sources to meet

aciual and contingent liabilities in both stable and adverse market conditions.

The Company's liquidity is primarily monitored through the production of statement of cash flows for board
review. Periodic review of the maturity profile of the Company's financial assets and liabilities is performed to

ensure sufficient liquidity is maintained.

The following is an analysis of the maturity profile of undiscounted contractual cash flows associated with the

Company's financial lizbilities at balance date, excluding insurance liabitilies:

Uptoa Over s
year 1-2 years 2-5 years years No term Total
2014 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Trade and other payables 1,289 359 - - - 1,658
Outstanding claims llabilities 9,034 2,843 1,802 40 - 13,719
Net principal liabilities 10,333 3,202 1,802 40 - 15,377
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(continued)
7 Financial risk management {(continued)
{b} Liquidity risk (continued)
Uptoa Over§

year 12 years 2.5 years years No term Total
2013 $'000 $'000 §'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Trade and other payables 6,317 146 - - - 6,463
Outstanding claims liabilities 8,050 2,858 1,536 37 - 12,481
Net principal abilites 14,367 3,004 1,536 37 - 18,944

The Company's financial assets and liabilities are caried in the stalement of financial position at amounts that
approximate fair value.

() Market risk

Markst risk is the risk that the fair value of its financial instruments or future cash flows will decrease due to
changes in external economic variables such as interest rates, currency rates and equity prices.

The board is responsible for developing and monitoring the risk management policies of the Company in relation
to market risk. The Company's investment activities follow the GECC FICS policy. The GECC FICS policy
document oullines the level of acceptable market risk, including counterparty ratings and exposure levels that
apply to the investment activilies of companies within the GECC Group.

(i} Currency tisk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of recognised assets and liabilities or the cash flows from possible future
transactions, that are denominated In a currency, other than that of the funclional currency, will decrease due to
changes in market exchange rates.

The Company has no foreign currency exposure at balance date that is considered material,

{iiy Interest rate risk

interest rate risk Js the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate as a result of changes in market
interest rates.

The following table analyses ihe impact of a reasonable possible movement in market interest rates on the
Company's operating results.

Impact on
Change profit
Carrying in before
Amount variables tax Impact on Equity Total
Uptoa Qver 5
year 1-2 years 2-Byears vears
2014 $'000 %  $'000 $'000 £'000 $'000  $°000 $°000
Financial assets
Short term
deposits 160,818 -1 {1,608) (1,126) - - - {1,126)
Fixed interest
securities - - - - - - - -
Debt securities - - - - - - - -
160,818 {1,608) {1,126) - - «~  1,426)
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7 Financial risk management (continued)
{c} Market risk (continued})
() Interest rate risk {continued)
Impact on
Change profit
Carrying in before .
Amount wvarlables tax Impact on Equity Total
Uptoa Qver 5
year 1-2 years 2-5 years years
2013 $'600 % %000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 5000
Financial as;".ets
Short term
deposils 198,541 -1 (1,985) (1,390) - - - (1,390)
Fixed interest
secuyities 46,390 -1 {464) {163) {12} {150) - {325}
244,931 (2,449) {1,553} {12} {150) - {1,715}

The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2013 and assumes that all other variables remzin the same.

8 Capital management

Capital consists of ordinary shares and relained earnings.

The Company's capital management strategy plays a central role in managing capital risk arising from the
business activities of the Company, providing an apprepriate level of capital to protect policyholders' interests and
satisfy regulalors. The strategy sesks to ensure sufficient capital levels are maintained in both stable and adverse

market conditions.

The Company has adopted a target surplus policy to assist the board and management {o manage its capital
position. The targat surplus level has been set wilh reference to a range of risks and possible adverse scenarios

faced by the Company.

The Company has net assets well in excess of the adopled target surplus requiremnent, reflecting its current
strong capital position.

In addition to the Company's targel surplus policy, external capital requirements are set and regulated by the
Ausfralian Prudential Regulation Authority (APRA). The Company calculates its capital position according to the
refevant Prudential standards which ensures sufficient capilal is maintained to meet policyholder obiigations. An
insurer's capital base is expected to be adequate for the size, business mix, complexity and risk profile of its
business.

It is the Company's policy to hold capital levels in excess of those required by APRA according to ils target
surplus policy, the capital level is regularly monitored to minimise the risk of a regulatory breach.

For delailed information on the Company's capital position and the capital requirements of APRA, refer to note
g(b).
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8 Capital management (continued)
{a) Risk management

Insurance contracts

An insurance contract is a contract under which the insurer accepts significant insurance risk from the
policyholder by agresing o compensate the policy holder for a specified uncertain future event that will adversely
affect them. Insurance risk is other than financial risk.

The significance of insurance risk under any one confract is determined by the uncertzinty surrounding the
probability and timing of the insured event occurring, and the magnitude of its effect, Insurance risk is assessed
by the Company at a contract level on its inception and is periedically reassessed as the risk may vary during the
period of insurance cover.

The majority of direct insurance confracts wiitten are entered into on a standard form basis. There are no special
term and conditions in any non-standard contracts that have a material impact on the financiat stalements,

The business writien consists mainly of consumer credit insurance,

insurance risk management

Insurance risk management is the assessment and quantification of the likelihood and financlal impact of events
that may require setllement by the insurer; and the ability of the Company to mitigate the financial impact of these
even!s on its operating resulls,

in accordance with Prudential Standards GPS 220 Risk Management {or General Insurers and GPS 230
Reinsurance Management for General Insurers issued by APRA, the board and senior management of the
Company have developed, implemented and maintained a sound and prudent risk management stralegy (RMS)
and a reinsurance management stralegy (ReMS),

The RMS and ReMS identify the Company's policies, procedures, processes and controls that address all known
material risks, financial and non-financial, arising from the business. Annually, the board certifies to APRA that
adequale strategies have been put in place to monitor those risks, that the Company has systems in place fo
ensure compliance with legislative and prudential requirements, and that the board has satisfied itself as to the
compliance with the RMS and ReMS.

Specific key components of the RMS and ReMs are detailed further helow.

(i} Underwriting sirategy

The board has developed an underwriting strategy to ensure that the Company has the ability to meet {he
insurance needs of the policy holders and to ensure the ability to pay benefits and claims when due. The strategy
involves the identification of risks by type, impact and likelihood and involves the application of mathematical
modeling to determine that products are appropriately priced.

(i} Reinsurance sirategy

A conservalive approach is taken in determining the level of risk appetite appropriate for the Company and where
deemed appropriate will spread the risk associated with the insured evenls according to its ReMS. All
reinsurance treaties are subject to analytical and statistical modeling to ensure that they offer a sufficient level of
cover for the ideniified exposures whilst in alignment with the ReMs of the Company.

There are {hree immaterial reinsurance policies relating to accidental death and warranly products. Given the
capital position of the Company and estimated insurance concentration risk charge of $20,68 million (NZ Branch
$6.25 million) at 31 December 2014 (2013: $21.29 million, NZ Branch $6.68 millien), the Company has adopted
the position that catastrophe cover is not required.
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8 Capital management (continued)
{a} Risk management {continued)

Insurance risk management (continued)

{iif) Claims management

Strict claims managernent procedures ensure the timely and accurate payment of claims in accordance with
policy conditions. Claim outcomes are monitored to track the actual versus expected experience of the portfalio,
with feedback delivered to underwriting and product development.

() Concentration of insurance risk
The Company's portfolio of products and policy holders Is sufficiently diversified such that there is no material
concentration of insurance risk.

{b)} Capital adequacy

The Company is required to hold prudential reserves, over and above the general insurance contract liabilities, as
a buffer apainst adverse fulure experience and poor invesiment retums. New risk-based prudential capital
standards for Ausiralian life and general insurance companies {LAGIC) were introduced effective 1 January
2013. The required tevel of capital for regulatory purposes {the prudential capital amount, or PCA) is intended to
take account of the full range of risks fo which a general insurer is exposed and a general company must ensure
that the general company has, at all times, a capital base in excess of its PCA (plus any additional ameunt as

required by APRA).

The excess of the Company's capital base over the PCA as at 31 December 2014 was $60.0 million (2013:
$139.2 miliion).

In addition to the regulatory capilal requirements, the Company maintains a target surplus providing an additional
capital buffer against adverse events.
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8 Capital management (continued)
{b)} Capital adequacy (continued)
LAGIC Disclosure

{(a) Capital base

(b) Prescribed capital amount

Capital in excess of prescribed capital amount = () - (b)
Capital adequacy multiple = (a)/(b)

Capital base;
Net assets
Regulatery adjiustment applied in the calculation of tier 1 capital

Common equity Tier 1 Capital

Prescribed capital amount:
Insurance risk charge

Insurance conceniration risk charge
Asset risk charge

Asset concentration risk charge
Operational risk charge
Aggregation benefit

Prescribed capital amount

Unrecognised items

Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2014

{continued)
2014 2013
$£'000 $'000
95,440 175,630
35,434 35,451
60,006 138,179
2.69 4.82
2014 203
$'000 $'000
89,491 171,362
5,949 4,268
95,440 175,630
10,868 12,519
20,678 21,202
4,020 2,797
2,823 1,871
(3,025) (2,128)
35,434 36,451

This seclion of the notes provides information about items that are not recognised in the financial statements as

they do not (yet) satisfy the recognition criteria.

89 Contingent assets and contingent liabilities

No contingent assels or contingent liabilities existed as at 31 December 2014 {2013: $nil).

10 Matters subsecuent to the end of the financial year

No matter or circumstance has arisen since 31 December 2014 that has significantly affected or may significantly

affect:
+ the Company's operations; or
« the results of those operations; or

» the Company’s stale of affairs.
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Other information

This section of the notes includes other information that must be disclosed o comply with the accounting
standards and other pronouncements, but that is not immediately related to individual line items in the financial

statements.

11 Remuneration of auditors
During the year the foliowing fees were paid or payable for services provided by the auditor of the Company:

{a) Audit and other assurance services

2014 2013
5 $
Amounts received or due and receivable by auditors of the Company (KPMG
Australia) for:
Audit and review of financial statements 99,020 110,010
Other assurance services:
APRA Return 31,585 34,982
AFSL Audit 5,658 6,030
Total remuneration for audit and other assurance services 136,260 151,022
{b) Non-audit services
2014 2013
] $
Amounts recelved or due and recelvable by auditors of the Company (KPMG
Australia) for:
Actuaria! External Peer Review 44,920 44,920
Total remuneration for non-audit services 44,920 44,920

Audit fees in 2014 and 2013 were paid by GE Capital Finance Australia Pty Ltd.

12 Key management personnel disclosures
The following persons were key management personnel of the Company at any time during the reporting period.

(i} Direciors

Duncan Gerald West (appointed 26 February 2014)
JoAnne Maree Stephenson {(appointed 26 February 2014)
Chiristopher Paul Knoblanche (appointed 26 February 2014)
Anna Elizabeth Gladman (appointed 29 April 2014)

Rachel Emma Cobh {appointed 23 June 2014)

Paul Brian McCann (resigned 26 February 2014)

Scott Kingsley Miller (resigned 28 April 2014)

Raymond Bruce Willing (resigned 30 April 2014)

Phillip Stuart Douglas Purcelt (resigned 30 Aprii 2014)

Neil William Smart {resigned 30 April 2014)
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12 Key management personnel disclosures (continued)

(i} Other executives

Aliessa Pritchard (appointed 2 January 2014}
Alexandra Yaniv (appointed 10 June 2014)
Rachel Perry (appointed 20 June 2014)
Drossos Haramantas (appointed 23 June 2014)
Ryan Kiss (appointed 9 December 2014}
Rosalyn Exley (resigned 12 May 2014)
Helen Mediati {resigned 23 June 2014)

Kevin Smith

Emma Robinson

Julie Tayior

Tien Tifa

Key management personnel compensation

In addition to their salaries, the Company and related parlies also provided non-cash benefits which included long
service leave and an employee share option plan.

2014 2013
L $
Short-term employee hensfits* 2,209,404 2,724,908
Long-term employee benefits 209,423 295,699
Equity compensalion benefils 24,471 76,051
2,443,288 3,096,748
There are no other fransactions with key management personnel {2013: $nil).
* The 2014 amount includes termination benefits of $132,600
13 Related party transactions
(a) Transactions with related parties
The following fransactions occurred with related parties:
2014 2013
5 $
Management fees paid toffreceived from):
GE Personal Finance Ply Ltd 929,406 777,764
Hallmark Life Insurance Company Ltd {2,650,153) {2,834,970)
GE Capital Finance Australasia Ply Ltd 11,694,085 10,701,114
GE Capital Corporation 268,587 -
Cross charges paid to:
GE Persanal Finance Ply Ltd 233,150 35,417
GE Gapital Finance Australasia Pty Lid 4,656,470 6,468,309
Transacticnal sales costs paid fo:
GE Capital Finance Australasia Ply Ltd 1,783,883 2,296,176
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13 Related party fransactions (continued)

(a} Transactions with related parties (continued)

Commission paid fo:
Avco Access Pty Lid
GE Personal Finance Ply Lid
GE Capital Finance Australia
GE Finance and Insurance Pty Lid (N2}

Royally paid:
GE Capital Registry, Inc.

Dividend paid/{received)
Hallmark Life lnsurance Company Lid - shareholder

{b)} Cuistanding balances with related parties

Receivablesf{payables)
Aveo Access Ply Ltd
GE Capital Finance Australasia Pty Ltd
GE Personal Finance Pty Ltd
Hallmark Life Insurance Company Ltd
GE Capital Finance Austrzalia
GE Finance and Insurance Py Ltd (N2)
GE Capital Holdings Partnership

Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2014

2014

204
2,896,619
3,780,168
2,939,008

303,071

103,000,000

2014
§

193

(1,375,347)
589,298
3,052,220
2,344,651
389,256

(2,488,485)

(continued)

2013

388
5,108,736
3,201,737
4,243,948

308,348

2013

415
174,501
2,001,896
1,670,897
1,493,534
1,053,762
(997,480)

No provisions for doubtful debts have been raised in relation to any outstanding balances, and no expense has
been recognised in respect of bad or doubtful debis due from related parties.

At 31 December 2014, there are no amounts outstanding owed by Hallmark General Insurance Company Lid to
GE Capital Finance Australasia Pty Ltd or to other related parties which are nol reflected in the accounts, and
there are no further amounts to be charged by GE Capital Finance Australasia Pty Lid or by other related parties
in relation to services provided to Hallmark General [nsurance Company Ltd during 2014 or prior years.

14 Summary of significant accounting policies

Hallmark General Insurance Company WUd is a company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in

Australia,

The Company is registered under the Insurance Act 1973,

Hs registered office and principal place of business is:
Level 4

99 Walker Street

Norih Sydney NSW 2060

Australia
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14 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued}

The principal accounting policies adopted In the preparation of these financial statements are set out below,
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

These financial statements are presenied in Australian dollars, which is the Company's functional currency.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by directors on 27 February 2015.

(a) Basis of preparation
Statement of compliance

These general purpose financial statements cover the Company and its New Zealand branch and has been
prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Slandards (AASBs) and interpretations issued by the
Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB), and the Corporafions Act 2001. The financial statements also
comply with International Financial Reporting Standards ([FRSs) and interpretations adopted by the International
Accounting Standards Board (1ASB).

For the purposes of the financial statements, the Company is a for-profit entity.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

There has been no change in accounting policies for the current financial period that would have a material
impact on these financial statements.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared on a fair value basis wilh cartain exceptions as described in the
gccounting policies below.

Critical estimates, judgements and errors

The Company makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reporled amounts of assets and liabilities at year
end. Estimates and judgements are continually evalusted and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reascnable under the circumstances. The
areas in which accounting estimates are applied are described below.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key area of estimation unceriainty for the Company is in its estimation of oulstanding ¢laims and reinsurance
recoveries. These are discussed in detail in note 2(g).

The ultimate liability arising from claims made under insurance contracts

Provision is made at the ysar-end for the estimated cost of claims incurred but not seltled at the end of the
reporting period, including the cost of claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) to the Company.

The Company takes all reasonable steps to ensure that it has appropriate Information regarding its claims
exposure. Howsver, given the uncertainty in establishing claims provisions, It is likely that the final outcome will
prove to be different from the original liabilily established.

The estimation of IBNR is generally subject to a greater degree of uncertainly than the estimation of the cost of
setlling claims already notified to the Company, where more information about the claim event is generally
availzble. In calculaling the estimated cost of unpaid claims the Company uses a variely of estimation
lechniques, generally based upon stalistical analyses of historical experience, which assumes that the
development pattern of the current ctairns will be consisteni with past experience. Allowance is made, however,
for changes or uncertainties which may create distortions in the underlying statistics or which might cause the
cost of unsettled claims to increase or reduce when compared with the cost of previously settled claims including:

« changes in the economic environment
« changes in the mix of business
» medical and technological developments
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14 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

{(a) Basis of preparation (continued}

The ultimate Hability arising from claims made under insurance contracts {continued)

+ changes in beneflt styuctures
+ changes in cfaimg management practice

Provisions are calculated gross of all recoveries. A separate estimate is made of the amounts that will be
recoverable from decreasing adjusiments and from reinsurers based upon the gross provisions. The decreasing
adjustments are estimated as 1/111h of gross outstanding claims liability.

The methods used to analyse past claims experience and to project future claims experience are largely
determined by the available data and the nature and maturily of the portiolio.

The determination of an appropriate culstanding claims liability and the specific assumptions used are detalled in
note 6,

Comparative information

Certain comparative information in the financial statements have been reclassified to conform with the current
year's presentation.

{h) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. The Company recognises
revenue from non-insurance activilies when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company
and the revenue amount can be reliably measured. The Company bases its estimales on historical results, taking
into consideration the type of customer, the lype of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement. n
addition, the following specific recognition critersia apply to revenue streams:

(i) Premium revenue

Premium revenue comprises amounts charged to policyholders (direct premium) for insurance coniracis,
excluding stamp duties and taxes collected on behaif of third parties, including the goods and services tax in
Australia.

Premium revenue is recognised in the profit or loss when it has been earmed. ¥ is recognised as eamed from the
date of attachment of risk {generaily the dale a contract is agreed to but may be earfier if persuasive evidence of
an arrangement exists) over the period of the related Insurance confracts in accordance with the paflern of the
incidence of risk expected under the contracts. The pattern of the risks underwriften is generally matched by the
passing of ime but where time does not approximate the pattern of risk, previous claims experience is used to
derive the incidence of risk,

Premium for unclosed business (business written close to reporting date where attachment of risk is prior to
reporfing date and there is insufficient information to accurately identify the business) is brought to account based
on previous experience with due allowance for any changes in the pattern of new business and renewals.

The unearned portion of premium is recognised within unearned premium lfiability in the Stalement of Financial
Position.

(i) Investment income

All investment income is recognised as revenue on an accruals basis, Interest income is recognised on a time
proportion basis using the simple interest method. Dividends are brought o account as declared and are
recagnised net of franking credits. Assets are designated at fair value through prafit or loss and the related net
realised and unrealised gains and losses are included in the proiit or loss as investment revenue.
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14 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Claims expenses

The Company's claims liability is measured as the present value of expected future payments relating to claims
incurred at the reporting date. The expected future payments include those estimates in relation to claims
incurred but not enough reported (IBNER's) and claims incurred but not reported {IBNR's) based on past

experience.

Claims incurred all relate to providing services, including the bearing of risk, and are accordingly treated as
expenses in the profit or loss. Claims expenses represent total claim paymenis made during the year adjusted for

the movement in the outstanding claims liability.

The claims liability is measured based on the advice of valuations performed by the appointed actuary whose key
assumptions are outlined in note 6.

{d) Other expenses

Other expenses are recognised in the profit or loss on an accrual basis.

(e) Outwards reinsurance premium

Premium ceded io reinsurers is recognised as an expense in accordance with the pattern of reinsurance service
received. Accordingly, a portion of outwards reinsurance premium is treated at the reporting date as deferred
reinsurance expense. Reinsurance recoveries on claims incurred are recognised as revenue,

{f) Deferred acquisition costs

Costs, which vary with and are primarily related to the production of new business, have been deferred to the
exient such cosls are deemed recoverable from future profits. Such costs primarily include commissions. These
costs are amortised in proportion {o premiums over the estimated lives of the policies. A write down to
recoverable amount is recognised where the present value of expected future claims {including seftlement costs)
in relation {o business wrilten to the end of the reporting period exceeds related unearned premiums less the
deferred acquisition costs.

(g) Income tax

Australian company

Incormne tax in the profit or loss for the periods presented comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognised in the profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equily.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the faxable income for the vear, using tax rates enacled or
substantially enacted at the balance date, and any adjustment to 1ax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheel method, providing for temporary differences belween the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounis used for taxation
purposes.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow the manner in which the
Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or seltle the carrying amount of ils assels and
liabilities.

A deferred tax asset is racognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profils will be available
against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax assets and llabilities are recognised on a gross basis. Current tax assels and tax liabilities are offset
where the enlity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either o seitle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and seftie the liability simultanzously.
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14 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

{g) income tax (continued)

Tax consolidation

On 1 January 2012, GE Capital Holdings Partnership became the head entity {(previously headed by GE Finance
Holdings Hold Co Ply Limited) of an income tax consolidated group incorporating the Company, Halimark Life
Insurance Company Ltd and several other related entities. The implemeniation date of the income tax
consolidated group was 1 July 2003,

The current and deferred tax amounts for the consolidated group are allocated amongst the entities in the group
using a separate taxpayer within the group approach whereby each entily in the income tax consoclidated group
measures ils current and deferred taxes as if it continued to be a separate {axable enfity in its own right, afier
deducting intercompany dividends, the benefit of any capital losses brought forward and intercompany debt
forgiveness transactions.

For financial years ending on or after 31 December 2014, the members of the income tax consolidated group
have entered into a tax funding agreement which sets out the funding obligations of the members of the income
tax consolidated group in respect of tax amounts. Where the member of the income tax consolidated group
recognises a laxable loss, the funding amount is nil with no compensation for the tax lasses unless the member
is subject to prudential reguiation by APRA, in which case the regulated entity will be compensated for its tax
losses.

The liabilities arising for the member under a tax funding agreement are recognised as amounts payable to GE
Capital Holdings Partnership. Any difference between the net tax amounts recognised on a separale laxpayer
within the group approach and the actual tax funding agreement amount payable is treated as an equity
tfransaction.

The members of the tax consolidaled group have also entered into a tax sharing agreement under the iax
consolidation legistation which sets out the allocation of income tax labilities between the entities should the
head enlity default on its tax payment obligations.

New Zealand branch

Tax-effect accounting is applied using the liability method whereby {ax is recognised as an expense and is
calculated after allowing for permanent differences. To the extent that differences occur between the time items
are recognised in the financial statemeanis and when items ara taken into account in determining taxable income
(timing differences), the related future taxation benefil and deferred income tax liability are disclosed as a
deferred lax asset and a deferred tax liability, respectively.

Taxation bases

The principal elements for the calculation of the taxable income for each class of business for the different bases
for calcutating tax are as follows:

Gross premium revenue

As the Branch is a non-resident, for tax purposes, general insurer in New Zealand it is taxed on 10% of lis New
Zealand sourced gross premium income. Deduclions for expenditure are not allowed. A non-resident withholding
tax of 10% or approved issuer levy of 2% applies to any New Zealand sourced interest income on investments.

(h) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalenis Include cash on hand, deposits held
at call with financial institutions and other shoriterm, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or [ess that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash.
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() Trade and other receivables

All premium and other receivables are recognised at the amounts receivable as these amounts are generally due
for setflement within 30 days and less, where applicable, any provision for doubtful debts. Colleciability of
premium and other recelvables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts which are known to be uncollectible are
written off in the perlod in which they are identified.

{i) Reinsurance and other recoverigs receivable

Reinsurance and other recoveries receivable on paid claims, reported claims not yet paid and IBNR's are
recognised as revenue. Recoveries recejvable are assessed in a manner simitar to the assessment of the lability
for outstanding claims and policy liabilities.

{k) Classification of insurance contracts

Contracts under which the Company accepts significant insurance risk from the policyholder or another party by
agreeing to compensate the policyholder or other beneficiary if a specified unceriain future event adversely
affects the policyholder or other beneficiary, are classified as insurance contracts. The risks associated with

Insurance contracts are detailed further in note 8(a).
{I} Assets backing general insurance liabilities

The Company currenily maintains a significant capital surplus. The Company has established a target capital
based on LAGIC requirements to ensure assets are avaitable to meet insurance liabilities,

{m} Financial assets

The Company has elected to designate all ifs financial assels backing insurance policies at fair value through
prafit or loss consistent with the provisions of AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss and are initially recognised at fair value, excluding
fransaction costs, which are expensed in the profit or loss in the periad in which they arise. Financial assets are
subsequently measured at fair value at each repording date with realised and unrealised gains and losses arising
from changes in the fair value recognised in the profit or toss in the period In which they arlse.

Classification

() Short ferm deposits

Short term deposits are carried at the face value of the amounts deposiled as their carrying amounts approximate
to their fair value.

(i) Unlisted fixed inferest securifies
Unlisted fixed interest securities are recorded at amounis based on valuations using rates of interest equivalent
to the yields abtainable on comparable investments at the end of the reporting periad.

Al financial instruments are required to be further categorised under AASB 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures,
according to the availabilily of observable markel inputs used in the measurement of their fair values, which is
detailed further in note 2(i).

(n) Impairment of assets

The carrying amount of the Company's non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets, are assessed
annually for indicators of impairment, if any such indicator exisis, then the asset's recoverable amount is
estimated.
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{n} Impairment of assets {continued)

An impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount,
Recaverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less cost of disposal and value in use, Impairment
losses are recognised in the profit or loss, unless an asset has previously been re-valued, in which case the
impairment loss is recognised as a reversal to the extent of that previous revajuation with any excess recognised

through the profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount is increased to the revised estimate of ils
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment been recognised for the assel in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment is recognised immediately in the profit or loss.

{0} Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior o the end of
the financial year, which are unpaid. The amounis are unsecured and are usually paid within 80 days of

recognition.
(p) Qutstanding claims Hability

The liability for cutstanding claims covers the expected future payments for claims including IBNR and IBNER
claims and the anticipated direct and indirect costs of settling these claims.

The liability for outstanding claims is subject to yearly actuarial review. The general approach to the actuarial
estimation of outsianding claims is to analyse all availlable past experience. Based on this, the expected fulure
payments are determined and discounted to present value using a risk free rate.

The provision for the outsianding claims lability afso contains a risk margin 1o reflect the inherent uncertainty in
the centraf eslimate. The risk margin increases the probability that the net liability is adequately provided for to a
90% {2013: 90%) confidence level,

(g) Liability adequacy test
The adequacy of the insurance confract liabilities are evaluated each year. The insurance contract lest considers

current estimates of a2/l contractual and refated cash flows. i it is delermined using best estimate assumptions
that a shortfall exisls, it is immediately recognised in the profit or loss. Refer to note 2{g){v).

(r) Unexpired risk liability

Provision is made for unexpired risks arising from general insurance business where the expected value of
claims and expenses atiributed o the unexpired periods of policies in force at the end of the reporting period
exceeds the unearned premiums provision in refation fo such policies after the deduction of any deferred
acquisition costs. The provision for unexpired risk is calculated separalely by reference to separate classes of
business, which are managed together, after taking into account the relevant investment return.

Unexpired risk liabilily, if any, remaining after writing off deferred acquisition costs is recognised immediately in
the profit or loss. Refer to note 2(g)(v).

{s) Employee benefits

{i} Shorl term employee benefifs

The provisions for employee entillements to wages, salaries and annual leave expected to be setiied whally
within 12 months of year end represents the amount which the Company has a present obligation to pay resulting
from employees' services provided up 1o the balance date. The provisions have been calculated ai undiscounted
amounts based on wage and salary rates that the Company expects to pay including related on-costs.

(i) Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liability for employees entitled to long service leave represents the present value of the estimated future cash
outflows to be made by the Company resulting from employees® services provided up to the balance date.
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(s) Employee benefits {continued)
(i} Other long-term employee benefit obligations (confinued}

Liabilities for employee entillements, which are not expected to be wholly settled within 12 months, are
discounted using the rates aftaching o Australian Commonwealth Government securities at balance date, which
most closely mateh the terms of maturity of the related liabilities.

In determining the lfability for employee entitlements, consideration has been given to future increases in wage
and salary rates, and the Company's experience with staff tenure. Related on-costs have aiso been included in
the liabiity.

{ii)) Defined coniribution plans
For defined contribution plans, the Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have
been paid. The contributions are recognised as other staff expenses when they are due.

(t) Foreign currency translation and functional currency

Funclional and presentation currency

liems included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates (the functional currency).

The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, which is the functional and presentation currency for
the Company.

Transaclions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are fransfated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulling from the setflement of such
transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the profit or loss.

Non-muonetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are lranslated using the exchange rates
at the date when the fair value was determined.

Translalion differences on financial instruments carried af fair value are reporied as part of ihe fair value gain or
loss.

The results and financial position of the branch of the Company that has a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

The results and financial position of the branch of the Company that has a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are {ranslated info the presentation currency as follows;

+  assels and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at the reporiing date

+ income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable
approximation of the curnulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions); and

« all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income, and accumulaled in a
separate component of equity.
(u) Goods and services tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assels are recognised net of the amount of goods and service tax (GST), except where
the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO). In these circumstances
the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense.
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(1) Goods and services tax (GST} {continued)

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of GST. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to,
the tax authorities (i.e. ATO and iRD) is included as a current asset or liability in the statement of financial

position.

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or
financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to, the tax authorities, are classified as operating cash
flows.

(v) Rounding of amounts

The Company is of a kind referred o in Class Qrder 98100, issued by the Australian Securities and Investments
Comimission, relating to the rounding off of amounts in the financial stalements. Amounts in the financial
statements have been rounded off in accordance with thatl Class Order to the nearest thousand dollars, or in

cerlain cases, the nearest dollar.
{w} New accounting standards and interpretations

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual periods
beginning after 1 January 2015, and have not been applied in preparing these financial statements, None of
these is expected to have a significant effect on the financial statemenis of the Company, except for AASB 9
Financial Instruments, which becomes mandatory for the Company's 2018 financial slatements and could change
the classificafion and measurement of financial assets. The Company does nol plan to adopt this standard early
and the extent of the impact has not been determined.
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Directors' declaration
31 December 2014

Directors’ Declaration
In the opinion of the Direclors of Hallmark General Insurance Company Lid (the Company).

(a) the financial statements and notes set out on pages 5 to 47 are in accordance with the Corporalions Act
2001, including:
{i) giving a frue and fair view of the Company's financial position as at 31 December 2014 and of its
performance for ihe financlal year ended on that date; and
(ii} complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001;

(b) the financial statements also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in note
14; and

{c) there are reasonable grounds {o believe that the Company will be able 1o pay its debis as and when they
become due and payable.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of directors:

cAnne Maree Stephenson {Chairman)
Director
Sydney
27 February 2015

=z

Anna Elizabeth Gladman (Managing Director)
Director

Sydney

27 February 2015
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Hallmark General Insurance
Company Ltd

Report on the financial report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Hallmark General Insurance Company
Ltd (the Company), which comprises the statement of financial position as at 31 December
2014, and the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income, statement of
changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year ended on that date, notes 1 to 14
comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information and
the directors’ declaration.

Directors' responsibility for the financial report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that
gives a true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the
Corporations Act 2001 and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error. In note 14, the directors also state, in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standard AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements, that the financial
statements comply with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Auditor s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. These Auditing
Standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit
engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
report.

We performed the procedures to assess whether in all material respects the financial report
presents fairly, in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 and Australian Accounting
Standards, a true and fair view which is consistent with our understanding of the Company’s
financial position and of its performance.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Independence

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the
Corporations Act 2001.

Auditor's opinion
In our opinion:

(a) the financial report of Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd is in accordance with
the Corporations Act 2001, including:

(i) giving a true and fair view of the Company’s financial position as at 31
December 2014 and of its performance for the year ended on that date; and

(ii) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations
Regulations 2001.

(b) the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as
disclosed in note 14.

KPMG

M—

Andrew Reeves
Parter

Sydney
27 February 2015
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x 2646 Sydney NSW 2001

24 July 2015
The Board of Directors
Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd
Level 4, 99 Walker Street
North Sydney NSW 2060

Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd: Appointed Actuary signoff of
financial statements and financial condition as at 31 December 2014 for
New Zealand reporting purposes

Dear Directors,

Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd ("HGIC"} is an Australian authorised insurer regulated by the
Australian Prudential Regulatory Authority ("APRA") and has a licence issued by the Reserve Bank New
Zealand (“RBNZ™).

HGIC has appointed me, Richard Yee, Ernst & Young, to be HGIC's Appointed Actuary as described by the
Insurance Act 1973 and related Prudential Standards and Guidance Notes current at 31 December 2014
and by the New Zealand Insurance (Prudential Supervision) Act 2010 (the Act). | have no relationship
with HGIC other than being its Appointed Actuary.

The prime responsibility of the Appointed Actuary is to provide advice to the Board of a general insurer
on its financial condition and on the value of its insurance liabilities (this includes the preparation of the
actuarial information contained in its financial statements). The Appointed Actuary must provide written
advice to the Board of the insurer on the value of insurance liabilities in accordance with APRA's
Prudential Standard GPS320 Actuarial and Related Matters.

As part of my responsibilities | have produced reports on HGIC's insurance liabilities, the Insurance
Liability Valuation Report (ILVR), and financial condition, the Financial Condition Report (FCR), as at 31
December 2014. The work | have undertaken is described in Section 2 of my FCR and Section 2 of my
ILVR. The scope and limitations of my review are described in Sections 2, 14 and 15 of my FCR and
Sections 2 and 13 of my ILVR. | have reviewed all information necessary for me to complete my FCR and
ILVR.

The RBNZ has exempted HGIC from compliance with their Solvency Standard for Non-life Insurance
Business. This exemption has been granted subject to various conditions, including obligations of the
Appointed Actuary. These obligations are addressed below. Where relevant and appropriate | have
commented on total HGIC Company level results and also separately in relation to HGIC New Zealand
results.

Financial Statements - HGIC Company
Section 77 of the Act requires a review by the Appointed Actuary of the actuarial information in the
financial statements of the company and in particular;

a. The unearned premium liability and liability adequacy test

b. The Net Qutstanding Claims Liability

c. The reinsurance and any other recovery assets

d. Any deferred acquisition cost or deferred fee revenue

e. Any other information deemed by the appointed actuary to warrant actuarial review for the
purpose of profit or solvency reporting.

Liability limited by a scheme approved
under Professional Standards Legislation



EY

Building a better
working world

| confirm that my FCR and my ILVR meet the requirements of Section 78 of The Act, and they contain my
advice regarding the net premium liabilities, liability adequacy test, net outstanding claims liabilities, the
reinsurance and any other recovery assets, and deferred acquisition costs (implicit in the unearned
premium).

| note that | have previously reviewed the earning patterns adopted by HGIC and consider them suitable.
For the current ILVR | have also checked the UEP calculation performed for certain product types and
believe the calculations are reasonable.

Based on the financial statements, the actuarial information provided has been appropriately included in
the preparation and completion of HGIC's 31 December 2014 year end financial statements.

Financial Statements - HGIC New Zealand Branch

Section 77 of the Act requires a review by the Appointed Actuary of the actuarial information in the New
Zealand Branch financial statements and in particular:

a. The unearned premium liability and liability adequacy test
b. The Net Outstanding Claims Liability

c. The reinsurance and any other recovery assets

d. Any deferred acquisition cost or deferred fee revenue

e. Any other information deemed by the appointed actuary to warrant actuarial review for the
purpose of profit or solvency reporting.

| confirm that my FCR and my ILVR meet the requirements of Section 78 of The Act, and they contain my
advice regarding the net premium liabilities, liability adequacy test, net outstanding claims liabilities, the
reinsurance and any other recovery assets, and deferred acquisition costs (implicit in the unearned
premium}.

| note that | have previously reviewed the earning patterns adopted by HGIC and consider them suitable.
For the current ILVR | have also checked the UEP calculation performed for certain product types and
believe the calculations are reasonable.

Based on the financial statements, the actuarial information provided has been appropriately included in
the preparation and completion of HGIC New Zealand Branch's 31 December 2014 year end financial
statements.

| am not aware of any other information that warrants actuarial review for the purpose of profit or
solvency reporting.
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Financial Condition Report

The appointed actuary must prepare a Financial Condition Report which must:

a. Identify and describe the material risks (of which it is reasonable to expect the appointed actuary
to be aware) facing a licensed insurer that, in the appointed actuary’s opinion, pose a threat to
the licensed insurer's ability to meet its solvency requirements now and in the future, and where
practicable quantify such risks

b. Comment on the steps taken or proposed by the licensed insurer to address the risks identified in
(a) above

c. Comment separately on the New Zealand business, these comments can be in line with
Australian reguirements for financial condition reports

d. Advise the licensed insurer on whether in the appointed actuary's opinion, the licensed insurer
needs to consider reporting to the RBNZ under Section 24 of The Act, taking into account the
licensed insurer's forward-looking assessment of the solvency standard and the appointed
actuary's assessment of the licensed insurer's business plans, its enterprise risk management
practices and the external environment.

The appointed actuary in the financial condition report must comment on:

a. The solvency position of the insurer if a catastrophe or extreme event, such as outlined in the
Catastrophe Risk Capital Charge section of the Non-Life Standard, were to occur in New Zealand.

b. Any difference in the financial condition of the New Zealand branch in comparison with the
insurer as a whole, which might have implications if the two were separated as a result of
regulatory action or litigation.

My FCR reviews HGIC at a company level rather than separately for the Australian and New Zealand
business. This is because the capital within HGIC is not allocated explicitly to either operation.

My FCR identifies and assesses the material risks facing HGIC, including mitigants addressing those risks
and thus meets the requirements of Section 56(d) of the Act.

HGIC is in a very strong financial position as at 31 December 2014 with a Capital Adequacy Multiple of
2.69. Capital requirements are expected to be met over the coming three years, and hence no reporting
under Section 24 of the Act is required. In my opinion HGIC is maintaining the solvency margin consistent
with the requirements under Section 21(2) (b) of the Act.

This strong position means that HGIC would be able to withstand a catastrophe or extreme event similar
to the Catastrophe Risk Capital Charge.

The Australian and New Zealand operations of HGIC are managed effectively as one entity and after the
analysis conducted for the ILVR and the FCR as at 31 December 2014 for HGIC, | conclude that the
financial condition of HGIC in total and the HGIC New Zealand Branch is sound.

The Australian and New Zealand operations of HGIC are managed in conjunction and | am not aware of
any material differences in the financial condition of the New Zealand Branch in comparison with the
insurer as a whole which might have implications if the two were separated.

Yours sincerely,

Richard Yee, FIAA, FNZSA
Appointed Actuary, Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd



